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The Wrigley Company Limited

Strategic Report
For the Period Ended 28 December 2018

The directors present their Strategic Report for the period ended 29 December 2018. The resuits represent the
52 week period ended 26 December 2018, and the comparatives the 52 week pericd ended 30 December 2017,

Business review, results and period end position

The profit for the financial period amounted to £530,159,691 (30 December 2017: £34 519,450). The net assels
of the Company al the period end were £1 (30 December 2017; £178,946,580). The comparative results for
2017 have been restated. Further details of the amendments can be found in note 1.11.

The Company ceased trading and transferred its trade and assets to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited on
25 February 2018, and so these financial stalements have been prepared on a basis other than going concem.
The directors have decided that the Company will be liquidated as a result.

Net assets were transferred at a value of £158 848,788. No adjustments were necessary in these financial
statements to reduce assets to their net reahsable values or to provide for liabilities arising from the decision.
Profit on sale of trade and assets amounted to £5641,051,212.

The entity also transferred operating lease commitments as shown in note 22 to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK
Limited on 25 February 2018

Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal risk
The pnncipal risks and uncertainties facing the Company include:
- possible fluctuations in the price and availability of raw materials, which are mitigated by contracts with

suppliers, and

- accidental or malicious contamination of our products, which is prevented by operating a rabust quality control
procedure.

Financial management risk

The Company's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in
commaodity prices, exchange rate, liquidity and credit. The Company seeks to limit the adverse effects on the
financial performance of the Company by monitoring the impact of these and addressing them accordingly.

The Company has specific policies and guidelines to manage financial risk and these policies are implemented
by the Company's finance department.

Commeodity price risk
The Company is exposed to commodity price risk as a result of its operations. Management monitor fluctuations
in commaodity prices and assess the need to hedge such exposure.

Exchange rate risk
The Company uses forward foreign currency contracts to reduce exposure to the variability of foreign exchange
rates by fixing the rate of any material payments in a foreign currency. The contracts are arranged through Wm.

Wrigley Jr. Company.

Liquidity risk
The Company aims to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generation via cash collection targets.

Credit risk

The Company has implemented policies that require appropriate checks on potential customers before sales are
made. Ongoing review of credit checks are made on customers depending on changes in trading relationships,
information received from other sources and time elapsed from previous information obtained.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Strategic Report {continued)
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

This report was approved by the board on 16 September 2019 and signed on its behalf.

C Moss ,{7
Director e
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Directors’ Report
For the Period Ended 23 December 2018

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the period ended 29 December 2018
The results represent the 52 week period ended 29 December 2018, and the comparatives represent the 52
week period ended 30 December 2017. The comparatives for the period ended 30 December 2017 have been
restated; further details can be found in note 1.11.

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial 52 week period. Under that
law the directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accaunting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland”, and applicable law). Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing the financial
staternents, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

. state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company wll continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Dividends
The profit for the financial period can be found within the Strategic Repont.

Dividends of £700,000,000 (20%7 £nil) have been proposed and paid to the holders of the ordinary shares; this
represents £62.2222222 per ordinary share (2017: £nil). No final dividend has been proposed (2017. £nil).

Directors
The directors who served during the period, and up to the date of signing, unless otherwise stated, were.

S Bell {resigned 5 January 2018)

K Fox {resigned 15 March 2019)

M Stuparitz

J Sprotte (appointed 5 January 2018)
C Moss (appointed 5 January 2018)

D Manzini {appointed 5 January 2018)

Political contributions
During the period the Company made contributions to charities of £nil (30 December 2017: £16,634}. No political
contributions were made during the penod (30 December 2017: £nif).
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Directors® Report {continued)
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Going concern

The Company ceased trading and transferred its trade and assets to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited on
25 February 2018, and so these financial statemenits have been prepared on a basis other than going concern.
The directors have decided that the Company will be liguidated as a resuit.

Net assets were transferred at a value of £158,948,788. No adjustments wera necessary in these financial
statements to reduce assets to their net realisable values or to provide for liabilities arising from the decision.
Adjustments have been made 1o reclassify fixed assets and long-term liabilities as current assets and liabilities.

The entity also transferred operating lease commitments as shown in note 22 to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK
Limited on 25 February 2018.

Given the Company has ceased trading and transfered its trade and assets, the directors have assessed the
impact of Brexit and determined that it is negligible.

Financial risk management
Details of the financial risks for the Company can be found within the Strategic report.

Environmental matters

The Company seeks {0 minimise adverse impacts on the environment from its activibes, whiist continuing to
address health, safety and economic issues.

The products manufactured and sold by the Company have minimal environmental impact. However, the board
believes that good environmental practices support the board's strategy by enhancing the reputation of the
Company, the efficiency of production and the quality of the products.

The Company has installed a rainwater harvesting system, diverted waste to biogas and recycling plants and
continually looks for ways to reduce energy consumption.

In 2013, the Company was the first Fast Moving Consumer Goods {(FMCG) company in the UK to obtain The
Wildlife Trust "Bicdiversity Benchmark" award. This award recognises continua! biodiversity improvement and

provides a framework within which an organisation can ensure that its impact is as positive as it possibly can be
by providing robust, independent verification of planning and implementation of land management practices.

Future developments
The future developments of the Company are explained within the Strategic Report.
Company policy for payment of creditors

It is the Company's policy that payments to suppliers are made in accordance with those terms and conditions
agreed between the Company and its suppliers, provided that all trading terms and conditions have been
complied with.

At 29 December 2018, the Company did not have any'supplier balances in order to caiculate the average
number of days putchases were outstanding in trade creditors (30 December 2017: 70 days). The Company's
standard payment terms are 60 days

Research and development activities

During the period, ingredient and technology research was carried out by the ultimate parent company in the
USA. Product development costs in the UK were expensed as incurred.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Directors' Report {continued)
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Disabled employees

The Company's policy is to give full and fair consideration to applications for employment received from disabled
persons. Retraining facilities are available and every consideration is given to providing suitable alternative work
where employees become disabled in service. Disabled persons with the necessary skills and abilty are
encouraged to apply for suitable promotian or further training opportunities.

Directors’ indemnities

The Company maintains liability insurance for its directors and officers, which is a qualifying third panty indemnity
provision for the purpose of the Companies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force throughout the financia! period
and also al the date of approval of the financial statements.

Disclosure of information to independent auditors

In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, the directors who were in office at the date the
directors’ report was approved, confirm that:

. so far as the director is aware, there is no reievant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and
. the director has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any

relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

This report was approved by the board on 16 September 2019 and signed on its behalf.

E

C Moss
Director
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Independent auditors’ report to the members of The Wrigley Company Limited
In our opinion, The Wrngley Company Limited's financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 29 December 2018 and of its
profit for the 52 week period (the “period”) then endad;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™, and applicable law); and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Finangial Statements
(the “Annual Report™), which comprise: the Balance Sheet as at 29 December 2018 the Incoms
Statement, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the 52 week
period then ended; and the noies lo the financial statements, which inciude a description of the significant
accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit In accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs {UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are reievant to our
audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fuifiled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
Emphasis of matter - financial statements prepared on a basls other than going concern

in forming our opinicn on the financial staterments, which is nol modified, we draw attention to note 1.1 to the
financial statements which describes the directors' reasons why the financial statements have been prepared on
a basis other than going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and. accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion
or, excepl to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing 80, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materialty misstated. If we identfy an apparent
malarial inconsistency or matertal misstatemenl, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether
there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information.
if, based on the work wa have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatemant of this other
information. we are required o report that fact We have nothing to report based on these responstbilities

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Repart, we also considered whether the disclosures required
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Based on the responsibilites described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, 1ISAs (UK}
require us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report for the period ended 29 December 2018 is consistent with the financial statements
and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In iight of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any materia! misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Raport.

Responsibilities for the financial staternents and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors' responsibilities statement set out on page 3, the directors are
rasponsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for
being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal contro as
they determine is necessary lo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, the directors arg responsible for assessing the company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whaether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material migstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a materiai misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's
website at: www.frc.org. uk/auditorsresponsitilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report

Use of this report

This repor, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume rasponsibility for any other purpose or o any other person to whom this report
is shown or info whose hands it may come save where axpressly agreed by our prior consent in writing
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Other required reporting
Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

. adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no excepltions to report arising from this responsibility.

Christophar Hibbs (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhousaCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountarts and Statutory Auditors
Birmingham

16 September 2019
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Income Statement
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Note
Turnover 3
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating income 4
Operating profit 5
Interest receivable and similar income 8
Interest payable and similar expenses 9
Profit before tax
Tax on profit 10

Profit for the financial period

The notes on pages 14 to 38 form part of these financial statements

See note 1.11 for details regarding the restatement of 2017 comparatives.

Period Penod ended
ended 28 30 December
December 2017
2018 restated
£ £
32,524,448 241225475
{18,027.571) (117,199,045)
14,496,877 124,026,430
(895,759)  (6,382,396)
(9,7056,506) (74,058,910)
541,051,212
544,946,824 43,585,124
404,959 2,531,288
{304,000} {1,798,000)
545,047,783 44 318,412
(14,888,092) (9,798,962)
530,159,691 34,519,450
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Profit for the financial pericd

Actuarial (loss)/gain on defined benefit schemes

Deferred tax in relation to post retirement benefits and pension (defined
benefit scheme)

Total comprehensive income for the period

The notes on pages 14 to 38 form part of these financial statements.

See note 1.11 for details regarding the restatement of 2017 comparatives.

30

29 December

December 2017

2018 restated

£ £

530,159,691 34 519,450
(10,972,000} 1,248,000

1,865,730 {212,180)

521,053,421 35555280
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The Wrigley Company Limited
Registered number:210533

Balance Sheet
As at 29 December 2018

29 30
December December
2018 2017
restated
Note £ £
Current assets
Intangible assets 11 - 99,640,479
Tangible assets 12 - 29,398,049
Stocks 13 - 11,757,345
Debtors 14 441,120 121,554 277
Cash at bank and in hand 15 1 50,030,947
441,121 312,381,097
Creditors: amacunts falling due within one
year 16 {441,120) (62,846,517
Net current assets 1 249 434 580
Total assets less current liabllities 1 249,434 580
Pension kability 20 - (7(2.488,000)
Net assets 1 178,946,580
Capital and reserves .
Called up share capital 22 1 11,250,000
Share premium account - 96,000,000
Profit and lass account - 71,696 580
Total equity 1 178,946,580

See note 1.11 regarding the restatement of 2017 comparatives.

The financial statements on pages 9 to 38 were approved and authorised for issue by the hoard of directors and
were signed on its behalf by: '

C Moss
Director

Date: 16 September 2019
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Share

Called up premium Profit and
share capital account loss account Total equity
£ £ £ £

At 31 December 2017 (as restated) 11,250,000 96,000,000 71,696,580 178,946,580
Comprehensive income for the period
Profit for the period - - 530,159,691 530,159,691
Actuarial loss on pension scheme arising during the
period - - {10,972,000) (10,972,000)
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension loss - - 1,865,730 1,865,730
Total comprehensive income for the period - - 521,053,421 521,053,421
Dividends: equity capital - - [700,000,000) {700,000,000)
Capital reduction {11,249,999) (96,000,000) 107,249,999 -
At 29 December 2018 1 - - 1

The notes on pages 14 to 38 form pan of these financial statements.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Period Ended 30 December 2017

Called up
share capital

£
At 1 January 2017 (as previously stated) 11,250,000
Impact of prior year adjustment on opening

reserves {see note 1.11) -

Share
premium Profit and
account koss account Total equity

£ £ £
96,000,000 41,331,290 148,581,290

- (5,180,000)  (5,190,000)

At 1 January 2017 (as restated) 11,250,000

96,000,000 36,141,290 143,391,2%

Comprehensive income for the period

Profit for the period -
Actuarial gain on pensicn scheme arising during

the period -
Impact of prior year adjustment on actuarial gain on

pension scheme -
Maovement in deferred tax relating to pension gain -

Irpact of prior year adjustment on deferred 1ax
relating to pension gain -

. 34,519,450 34,519,450
. 1,262,000 1,262,000

- {14,000} (14,000)
- (215,160) {215,160)

- 3,000 3,000

Total comprehensive income for the period -

- 35,655,280 35,555,290

At 30 December 2017 (as restated) 11,250,000

96,000,000 71,696,580 178,946,580

The notes on pages 14 to 38 form part of these financial statements.

See note 1.11 regarding the restatement of 2017 comparatives.

The profit for the period ended 30 December 2017 as previously stated was £34. 421,450 The impact of the
prior year adjustment on the profit for the period ended 30 December 2017 was a net increase of £98,000.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

1.

Accounting policies

141

1.2

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost canvention, as mod.fied by the
recognition of certain financial assets and habilities measured at fair value, and in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standards 102, "The Financial Reporting Standards applicable in the United
Kingdom and Republic of lreland" ("FRS 102") and the Companies Act 2006.

The Company ceased trading and transferred its trade and assets 1o Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK
Limited on 25 February 2018, and so these financial statements have been prepared on a basis other
than going concern. The directors have decided that the Company wilf be liquidated as a result

Net assets were transferred at a value of £158,048,788. No adjustments were necessary in these
financial statements to reduce assets o their net realisable values or to provide for habilies arising
from the decision, Adjustments have been made to reclassify fixed assets and long-term liabilities as
current assets and liabilities.

The entity aisc transterred operating lease commitments as shown in note 22 to Mars Wrigley
Confectionery UK Limited on 25 February 2018.

The accounting policies oullined below have been appled on a consistent basis and, where
necessary, have been updated to include any policies which are now considered significant given the
presentation of the financial statements on a basis other than going concern. Some of the amounts
reported for the previous period have been restated. Detailed information about these restatements
can be found in note 1.11.

The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgement in applying the
Company's accounting policies (see note 2).

General Information

The Company provides gum, mints and confectiohs product offerings, up to the date of transfer of
trade on 25 February 2018. Since then, the Company has been dormant.

The Company is a private company limited by shares and is incorporated in England. The address of
its registered office is Estover, Plymouth, Devon, PL6 7PR.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied and are outhned below.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 28 December 2018

1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.3

1.4

1.5

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity certain disclosure exemptions, subject to certain conditions, which
have been complied with, including notification of, and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the
Company's shareholders.

The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions:

i) The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiéw of Wrigley Uno UK Limited and is included in the
consolidated financial statements of Wrigley Intemnational Holding Company.

Consaquently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing a statement of
cash flows under the terms of paragraph 1.12 of FRS 102.

ii} The requirements of Section 33 - Related Party Disclosures, paragra;')h 337
Turnover recognition

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the Company in frespect of goods supplied during the
period, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade discounts.

The following criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Turmnover from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have passed to the buyer.

Tangible assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is provided at rates
calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, over their expected
useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold property - aver 20 to 40 years
Plant & machinery - over 3 to 10 years

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

No depreciation is charged on assets which have yet to be commissioned. Depreciation is charged
from the month in which the asset is brought into use

Regular reviews of fixed assets are undertaken to idetify any assets which are either no longer in
use or have suffered a diminution in value. Any imparrments identified from this exercise are taken to
the profit and loss as the difference hetween the value calculated in the review based on higher of net
realisable value and value in use and that held in the Company’s books.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Accounting policies {continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Stocks

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsalete and slow-moving stocks. Cost 1s determined using the first in, first out method {FIFQ) and
includes alt direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads.

Display stands and spare parts stock are expensed immediately upon purchase to the Income
Statement.

Product development

During the period, ingredient and technology research was carried out by the ultimaie parent
company in the USA. Product development costs in the UK were expensed as incurred

Taxation

Corporation tax payable is provided on taxable profits at the current rate.  The taxation liabilities of
certain group companies are reduced whally or in part by the surrender of losses by fellow group
companies for which nc consideration is paid.

Deferred taxation has been recognised as a liability or asset if transactions have occurred at the
Balance Sheet date that give rise to an obligation to pay more taxation in the future, or a right to pay

less taxation in the future. An asset is not recognised to the extent that the transfer of economic
benefits in the future is uncertain. Deferred taxation assels and liabilities have not been discounted.

Foreign currencles

Monetary assets and liabilles expressed in foreign currencies are transiated into sterling at rates of
exchange ruling at the Balance Sheet date.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling al the rate ruting on the date of the
transaction.

Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

1.10 Financial instruments

Foreign currency exposure is monitored and any major currency risk is covered with appropriate
forward contracts arranged through Wm. Wirigley Jr. Company, an intermediate parent undertaking.
All differences arising from the retranslation and settlement of such instruments is taken to the
income statement. All gains and losses on derivatives in respect of future transactions are deferred.
The principte value of contracts held at 29 December 2018 are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.
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The Wrigiey Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

1.

Accounting policies {continued)

1.11 Pensions

The Company operates a defined benefits pension scheme and the pension charge is based on a full
actuarial valuation dated 25 February 2018 by a qualified independent actuary.

The Company operates a defined benefit pension scheme, which requires contributions to be made
to separately administered funds. The regular cost of providing retirement benefits to employees
during the period is charged to operating profit in the period. The full cost of providing amendments to
benefits in respect of past service is also charged to operating profit in the period. The expected
retum on the assets of the scheme during the period based on the market value of scheme assets at
the start of the financial period is included within other finrance income. This also includes a charge
representing the expected increase in liabilities of the scheme during the period, arising from the
liabilities of the scheme being one period closer to payment Differences between actual and
expected costs arising from the experience of the plans or changes n actuarial assumptions are
recognised immediately in the statement of recognised gains and losses in the period.

The assets and liabilities are recognised at fair value at each Balance Sheet date, with the net
defined benefit pension scheme liability reported on the Balance Sheet within the pension liability.
This lability is reported net of related deferred tax.

The Company additionally operates an unfunded, non-contributory, self-administered deferred cash
promise (mirror promise) scheme. The deficit of this promise is recognised in full on the Balance
Sheet and represents the present value of the promise obligation at the Balance Sheet date. The
Company also operates an International Associate Retirement Plan {(IARP} which is an unfunded
scheme that does not require any associate contributions, The deficit of this scheme is recognised in
full on the Balance Sheet and represents the present value of the abligation at the Balance Sheet
date.

Historically, the accounting treatment of the Mirror Promise and IARP pension arrangements have
been disciosed within long term liabilities, As part of the transfer of trade and assets to Mars Wrigley
Confectionery UK Limiled, it was identified that the value of the liabilities recognised were incomplete.
The opening reserves position has been updated to reflect the full fair value of the liability under
these two arrangements. Additionaliy, the accounting treatment of the commitments have been
aligned to that of the rest of the Mars UK group of entities and as such, determined to be more akin
to that of a pension liability, therefore the commitments have been reclassified to pensions.

The impact of the restatement on cpening reserves, as presented through the Statement of Changes
In Equity, is a net decrease of £5,190,000. This is made up of a decrease in long term habilities of
£5,855 000, an increase in pension liabilities of £12,108,000 and an increase in deferred tax asset of
£1,062,000.

The impact of the restatement on the net assets as at 30 December 2017 is a reduction of
£5,103,000, which is comprised of a decrease in long-term liabilities of £8,223,000, an increase in
pension liabilties of £14,371,000, and an increase in the deferred tax asset of £1,045,000.

In 2017 the impact on the recognised total comprehensive income for the period is broken down as
follows:

- The impact recognised in the Income Statement is a decrease in cost of sales of £415,000, an
increase in interest payable and similar expenses of £297 000, and an increase in tax on profit of
£20,000.

- The impact recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 1S a decrease in actuanal gains
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 28 December 2018

Accounting policies (continued)

on defined benefit schemes of £14,000, and a decrease in deferred tax in relation to post retirement
benefits of £3,000.

1.12 Intangible assets - goodwill
Goodwilt recognised represents the excess of the fair value and directly attributable costs of the
purchase consideration over the fair values to the company's interest in the identifiable net assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Goodwill is amortised over the expected useful life which
i5 assessed to be 50 years given the longstanding established brands supporting this longevity.

Goodwill is assessed for impairment when there are indicators of impairment and any impairment is
charged to the income statemant

Reversals of impairment are recognised when the reasons for impairment no longer apply.
1.13 Consolidated financial statements

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wrigley Uno UK Limited and is included in the
consolidated financial statements of Wrigley International Holding Company.

Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption from preparing consolidated
financial statements under the terms of section 401 of the Companies Act 2006. These financial
statements therefore contain infarmation about the Company only.

1.14 Operating leases

Rentals under aperating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the
lease term

1.15 Dividend income
Dividend income 1s recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
1.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
ordinary shares are shown in equity as a deduction net of tax from proceeds.

1.17 Distributions to equity shareholders
Dividends and other distributions to Company shareholders are recognised as a hiabilty in the
financial statements once approved by Company shareholders. These amounts are recognised in the
Statement of Changes in Equity.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors. including expectations of future events that are beheved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Page 18




The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Perlod Ended 29 December 2018

Judgements in applying accounting policies (continuad)
Critical judgemants in applying the Company’s accounting policies

i) Electing not to restate business combinations that occurred before the transition date Assets and
liabilties at transition date reviewed and no material changes deemed required.

ity Deferred tax not recogmsed on unremitted eamings from subsidiaries as there is no binding agreement
to distribute the past eamings in the future.

iii} Deciding not to measure property, plant and equipment on the date of transition to FRS 102 at their fair
value and use that fair value as their deemed cost to date.

iv) Intercompany loans considered to be at market rate.

v) Deciding nat to designate financial instruments at the date of transition to FRS 102 at fair value through
profit and loss as it would not provide more relevant information.

vi} Electing not to apply FRS 102 to lease incentives on leases existing before the date of transition.

vii} Choosing to apply the full provisions of section 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in relation to financial
instruments.

viii) Foreign currency transactions recognised at the monthly average exchange rate.

ix} Choosing to measure investment in subsidiaries at cost, not at deemed cost, which is the carrying
amount at transition date.

Keay accounting estimates and assumptions

i} Fair values of derivatives
The fair values of derivatives involved the use of valuation of the difference between the agreed forward

rate and the spot rate at the Balance Sheet date

H) Impairment of goodwill

The Company considers whether goodwill is impaired. Where an indication of impairment is identified the
estimation of recoverable value requires estimation of the recoverable value of the cash generating units
{CGUs). This requires estimation of the future cash flows from the CGUs and also selection of appropriate
discount rates in order to calculate the net present value of those cash flows.

i} Impairment of inventory
The Company considers whether inventory is impaired. Selling price less cost to complete and sell is

estimated for inventory.

iv) Defined benefit scheme
The Company has obligalions to pay pension benehts to certain employees. The cost of these benefits

and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including; life expectancy, salary
increases asset valuations and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these
factors in determining the net pens«on obligation in the Balance Sheet. The assumptions reflect historical

experwence and current trends.

v) Useful lite of goodwill
The Company has concluded to amortise goodwill over 50 years.

vi) Holiday pay accrual
The Company considers the expected cost of accumulating compensating absences when employees
render services that increase their entittement to compensated absences. The largest potential estimate
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Judgements in applying accounting policies {continued)
for a holiday pay accrual is based on lotal basic pay multiphed by the number of days allowed te be carned
forward as a percentage of total working days for the period.

vii) Impairment of tangible fixed assets
The Company considers whether tangible fixed assets are impaired. Carrying value is compared against
estimated discounted cash flows for the unit

vii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company considers whether equity instruments held in financial assets and other individually
significant financial assets are impaired. Net present value of future cash flows is estimated for these
financial assets and compared against book value.

ix) Trade promotions accrual

The Group/Company considers the value of an accrual for trade promotions using promotionat guidelines
which show the promotional mechanics, Jevel of funding recommended and the expected uplifis those
promoticns generically defiver based on historical performance where we have data.

Turnover

Analysis af turnover by country of destination

29 30

December December

2018 2017

£ £

United Kingdom 2K,R32,937 201,475 778
Rest of European Union 5,927,481 34245703
Rest of World 964,030 5,504,046

32,524,448 241225475

All turnover 1s generated through the sale of products.

Other operating income

29 30
December  December
2018 2017
£ £
Non-taxable profit on sale of trade, assets and liabilites to Mars Wrigley
Confectionery UK Limited 541,051,212 -
541,051,212 .
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Operating profit

The operating profit 1s stated after charging/{crediting).

29 30
December December
2018 2017

£ £

563,806 3.612,809
326,155 6,359,582
- 89,000
15,319 78,641

Depreciation of tangible assets
Amortisation of intangible assets, including goodwill
Fees payable for the audit

Fees payable for other services

Operating leases

- other operating leases

- land and buildings

Loss on sale of fixed assets

Inventory recognised as an expense

Difference on foreign exchange

Debtors (released from)iwritten off to bad debt provision
Derivative financial instrument loss/(gain)

(17,270} 1,524 195

(48,189) 554 610

- 6,125

17,134,069 111,044,341

(51,938) 186,040

(38,123) 1635675
144,449 {1,738 551)

The audit fees are fully borne by Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited.

The fees payable for other services relate 1o tax compliance and other tax advisory services.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Employees

Staff costs, including directors' remuneration, were as follows

kio]
29 December
December 2017
2018 restated
£ £
Wages and salaries 3,670,178 23,643,008
Social security costs 601,441 3,424 266
Other pension costs 1,100,000 7,036,000
5371,619 34,106,272

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the period was as follows
29 30
December December
2018 2017
No. No.
Produchon 37 248
Other 33 254
70 502

Directors’ remuneration

29 30
December December
2018 2017
£ £
Directors’ emoluments 232,578 1,174,756

Emoluments due to M Stuparitz and J Sprotte were paid by other group companies. These directors
provided no qualifying services to the Company and accordingly their emoluments are not included in the

above.

The highest pad director received remuneration of £195198 (31 December 2017 £873,825) The

highest paid director has not participated in the defined benefit scheme.

Durng the period retirement benefits were accruing to 2 girectors (2017, 3 directors) under the group's
defined benefit pension schemes and rno directors (2017 none) under the group's monhey purchase

scheme
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

Interest receivable and similar income

Interest receivable from group companies
Bank interest

Interest payable and similar expenses

Net interest expense on post employment benefits

29 30
December December
2018 2017

£ £

398,669 2,518,607
6,290 12,681
404,959 2,531,288

30

29 December

December 2017

2018 restated

£ £

304,000 1,798,000
304,000 1.798.000

Page 23



The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

10.

Tax on profit

Corporation tax

UK corporation tax charge on praofit for the pericd
Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Adjustments in respect of prior penods
Effect of changes in tax rates

Total deferred tax

Tax on profit

30

29 December
December 2017
2018 restated

£ £
1,460,610 8,801,990

{126,090) (151,679)
1,334,520 8,650,311
13,716,200 1,154,715
(212,726) 129,000

50,098 (135,064}
13,553,572 1,148,651
14,888,082 9,798 962
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

10.

Tax on profit (continued)

Factors affecting tax charge for the period

The difference between tax assessed for the penod at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
18.00% (2017: 19.25%) and the total charge are explained below

Profit before tax

Profit befare tax multiplied by standard rate of corpeoration tax in the UK of

19.00% (2017. 19.25%)
Effects of:

Expenses not deductible

Non-taxable profit on sale to Mars Wrigley Confechonery UK Limited
Adjustments in respect of priar periods

Tax rate changes

Deferred tax asset released on sale to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK

Limited

Total tax charge for the period

30
29 December
December 2017
2018 restated
£ £
545,047,783 44,318,412
103,559,079 8,531,204
228,469 1,425,411
{102,799,731) -
(338,816} {22,679)
50,098 (135,064)
14,188,993 -
14,388,092 9,798,962
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

10.

11,

Tax on profit (continued)

Factors that may affect future tax charges

The Finance Act 2016 included legislation to reduce the rate to 17% from 1 Aprit 2020. The reduction has
been enacted at the Balance Sheet date and therefore reflected in these financial statements.

intangible assets )

Goodwilt
£

Cost
At 31 December 2017 106,000,000
Sale to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited (106,000,000)
At 29 December 2018 -
Amortisation
At 31 December 2017 6,359,521
Charge for the period 326,155
Sale to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited (6,685,676)
At 29 December 2018 .
Net book value .
At 29 December 2018 -
At 30 December 2017 99,640,479

The goodwill held is in retation to Wngley Candy UK, the Company's wholly-owned dormant subsidiary,
which previously hived up its trade and assets to the Company. Wrigley Candy UK is a private uniimited
company incarparated in England. Its registered address is Estover, Plymouth, Devon, PLE 7PR.

As a resull of the basis of preparation being a basis other than going cancem, these balances were
included as current assets as at 30 December 2017. These assets were transferred fo Mars Wrigley
Canfectionery UK Limited on 25 February 2018.
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The Wrigley Company Limited

Nates to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 28 December 2018

12.

Tangible assets

Cost or valuation

At 31 December 2017

Additions

Sale to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited

At 29 December 2018

Depreciation

At 31 December 2017

Charge for the period

Sale to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited

At 28 December 2018

Net book value
At 29 December 2018

At 30 December 2017

Freehold Plant &
property machinery Total
£ £ £

15,134,625 96,746,780 114,881,405
26,997 1,392,343 1,419,340
(15,161,622) (98,139,123) (113,300,745)

10,769,275 71,714,081 82,483,356
90,650 473,156 563,806
{10,859,925) (72,187,237) (B3,047,162)

4,365,350 25032,699 29,398,049

The net book value of land and buildings may be further analysed as follows:

Freehold

29 30
December December
2018 2017

£ £

- 4,366,245

- 4,366,245

As a result of the basis of preparation being a basis other than going concern, these balances were
included as current assets as al 30 December 2017. These assets were transferred to Mars Whigley

Confectionery UK Limited on 25 February 2018
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For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

13.

14.

Stocks
28 30
December December
20138 2017
£ £
Raw rnateriats - 2,857,163
Finished goods and goods for resale - 8,900,182
- 11,757,345

The difference between purchase price or production cost of stocks and their replacement cost is not

material.

Stocks are stated after provisiens for impairment of £nil (30 December 2017: £203,000).

Debters
29
Becember
2018
£
Due within one year
Trade debtors -
Amounts owed by group undertakings -
Other debtors -
Financial instrumants -
Prepayments and accrued income -
441120

Tax recoverable
Deferred tax asset (see note 18)

30
December
2017
restated

£

15,342,737
91,564,981
690,349
360,711
1,907 657

11,687,842

441,120 121,554,277

The amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and are
repayable on demand. Included in amounts owed by group undertakings is a ioan of £nii (30 December
2017 £91,750,000) due fram the parent company. Interest accrues on this lean at a rate of 0.00% per
annum (30 December 2017 2 82% per annum) All other amounts owed by group undertakings relate to

trading items.

Trade debtors are stated less provisions for impairment of £nil (30 December 2017. £1,594 000).
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15,

16.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Trade creditors

Amounts owed to group undertakings
Corporation tax

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Financial instruments

Accruals and deferred income

29 30
December December
2018 2017

£ £

1 50,030,947

1 50,030,947

28 30
December December
2018 2017
restated

£ £

- 29,949,379
441,120 103,452

- 3,883,517

- 5,359,762

- 10,023,483

- 569,582

- 13,047,342
441,120 62,546,517

Amounts owed to group undertakings are from trading items only. Amounts owed to group undertakings

are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.

Within other creditors are £nil (30 December 2017 £640,000) of incentive payments due to staff and

directors .

As a result of the event discussed in the Strategic Report, these obligations were transferred to Mars

Whngley Confectionery UK Limited on 25 February 2018.
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17.

Financial instruments

29 30
December December
2018 2017
restated
£ £
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or koss - 360,711
Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost 1 157,628,014

1 157,989,725

Financial liabilities

Derivative financial instruments measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss

held as part of a trading portfolio - (569,582}
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost - (53,123,658)
- (53,693 ,238)

Derivative financial instruments - forward contracts

The Group enters into forward foreign currency contracts lo mitgate the exchange rate risk for certain
foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. ‘The value of the contracts undertaken is based on
forecast foreign currency cash flow exposures for the period over which the contract applies. The forward
foreign currency contracts are arranged through Wm. Wrigley Jr. Company and settled in the US but alf
associated benefits/costs are passed to the Company.

In tine with Section 12 of FRS 102, the forward currency contracts are measured at fair vaiue at each
Balance Sheet date and the difference between the vaiue of the contracts at spot and forward rate 1s
recorded in the Balance Sheet. Fair value is determined using valuation techniques that utilise observable
inputs The key inputs used in valuing the derivatives are the agreed forward exchange rates and the spol
rates at the Balance Sheet date. The gain or loss on the contracts is taken to the income Statement

As at 29 December 2018, there are no open contracts (30 December 2017: all outstanding contracts
were set to mature within 12 months of the year end). The Group is not committed to buying any foreign
currencies (30 December 2017, committed to buy net US $22,550,000, buy net €23,105,037, sell
27,200,000kr, sel! AUS $2,300,000, sell 4,620,000 Israeli New Shekels, sell 5,400,000 lei, and pay a fixed
sterling amount).

The fair value of forward foreign currency contracts as at 29 December 2018 was £nil (30 December
2017 a £208,871 net liability).
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18.

19,

Deferred taxation

29 30

December December

2018 2017

restated

£ £

At beginning of penod 11,687,842 13,048,653

Charge/(credit) to income statement {13,583,572) (1,148.651)
Chargel/{credit} to other comprehensive income 1,865,730 (212,160)
At end of period - 11,687 842

The deferred tax asset is made up as follows:

29 30

December December

2018 2017

restated

£ £

Fixed asset timing differences - {563,158)
Short-term timing differences - 4,889,000
Pension - 7,362,000
- 11,687,842

Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
periods in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Capital commitments

At the pericd end the Company had capital commitments as follows

29 Ky

December  December

2018 2017

£ £

Contracted for but not provided in these financia! statements - 4,839,697
- 4,839 697

As a result of the event discussed in the Strategic Report, these commitments transferred to Mars
Wngley Confectionery UK Limited on 25 February 2018 unless already accounted for in the period to 25

February 2018.
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20.

Pension commitments

The Company operated a defined benefit pension schame in the UK and Ireland which provided benefits
based on final salary. A full actuarial valuation, using the projected unit method, was carried out in the UK
scheme at 31 December 2017 by a qualified independent actuary.

The employer contribution rate to the plan for the period ended 29 December 2018 was 32.8% (30
Decernber 2017: 32 B%) of pensionable salaries. The employer agreed with the plan trustees that this rate
will continue to be paid untit 31 December 2019. The employer, as of 25 February 2018, is the related
group undertaking, Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited.

The Company additionally operates an unfunded, non-contributory, self-administered deferred cash
promise {mirror promise) scheme. The Company also operates an International Associate Retirement
Pian (IARP) which is an unfunded scheme that does not require any associate contributions.

The Company also provides certain additional healthcare benefits which are unfunded

The amaunts recognised in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

29 30

December December

2018 2017

restated

£ £
Present value of funded obligations - (317,296,000)
Fair value of scheme assets - 246,808,000
Net pension scheme liability - (70,488,000)
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20.

Pension commitments (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement are as follows

Operating profit

Current service cost
Plan introductions, changes, curtaiments and settlernents
Administrative costs

Total

Net interest expense on post employment benefits

Interest income on plan assets
Interest on defined benefit obligation

Total

Statement of Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Actuarial {loss) arising during the period
Retum on plan assets (less)/greater than discount rate

Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised in other comprehensive income

29 30
December December
2018 2017
restated
£ £
(1,100,000} (7,035,000)
(1,869,000) -
(118,000) (732,000)
{3,187,000) (7,771,000)
914,000 5,691,000
(1,218,000) (7.489.000)
(304,000) (1,798,000}
{2,343,000) (17,705,000
{8,629,000) 18,653,000
{10,972,000) 1,248,000
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20.

Pension scommitments {(continued)

The pension expense recorded in the income Statement s apportioned to the following lines based on
the percentage of headcount cost of sales 57% (30 Decermber 2017 57%) and administration
expenses. 43% (30 December 2017: 43%). The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet relating to the
pension scheme was £nil (30 December 2017: £56,117,000).

The estimated employers' cash contribution for the 2018 financial period was £2,284,308 (30 December
2017: £14,771,000). Actual employers’ cash contribution for the 2018 financial period was £2 532,000 (30
December 2017: £14,834,000).

The iARP pension charge to the Income Statement for the period was £82,000 (30 December 2017:
£502.000). The obligation included in the Balance Sheet as at 29 December 2018 was £nil (30 December
2017: £1,969,000).

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement in relation to the deferred cash promise were
£256,000 {30 Decernper 2017: £1,747,000) of which £56,254 (30 December 2017. £1,547 000) were
recharged to other group entities, as the individuals associated with these promises are on assignment.
The amount recognised in the Balance Sheet relating to these promises was £nil {30 December 2017:
£12,402,000). An intercompany deblor is held for any recharges not settled in the period.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

29 30

December December

2018 2017

restated

£ £

Opeming defined benefit obligation 317,296,000 292 576 000

Interest cost 1,218,000 7,489,000
Transfers in 14,006,000 -
Transfers out {3,283,000) -

Contributions by scheme participants 31,000 184,000

Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation (5,370,000} 17 705,000

Effect of employee service cost in the current period 1,100,000 7,039,000
Plan introductions, changes, curtailments and settlements ) 1,969,000 -

Benefits paid (951,000) (7.697,000)
Sale to Mars Wngley Confectionery UK Limited (323,006,000} -

Closing defined benefit obligation - 317,296,000
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20.

Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the farr value of scheme assets were as follows.

29 30

December December

2018 2017

restated

£

Opening fair value of scheme assets 246,808,000 215575000
Return on ptan assets (less)/greater than discount rate (8,629,000% 18,953,000
Benefits paid (941,000) (7,697.000)
Contributions by employer 2,532,000 14,834,000
Interest income on plan assets 914,000 5,691,000
Administrative expenses (118,000) (732,000)
Contnbutions paid by employee 31,000 184,000

Sale toa Mars Wrigiey Confectionery UK Limited (240,597,000) -

- 246 808,000

The pension scheme amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income was a loss of £3,169,000 (30 December 2017: gain of £1,262,000).

The expected return on scheme assets is determined by considering the expected returns available on
the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected returns on equity investments reflect long-
term real rates of return experienced in the respective markets. The overall expected return on assets is
a blended average of projected long-term returns for the various asset classes.

Scheme assets do not include any of The Wrigley Company Limited's own financial instruments, or any
property occupied by The Wrigley Company Limited.

The investment funds are valued at the current bid price.

The IARP amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
was a loss of £11,000 (30 December 2017: loss of £17,000).

The deferred cash promise amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income was a loss of £78,000 (30 December 2017: gain of £3,000).

From 1 January 2018, a change in cost allocation method was introduced which resulted in an
amendment of the allocation of the deferred cash promises. The impact of this was a net transfer in of
£7.714,000 recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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20.

Pension commitments (continued)

The principal assumptions used in the actuanal valuation were:

Discount rate

Future salary increases

Future pension increases

Inflation - RPI

Inflation - GPI

Mortality rates

Longewity at age 65 for current pensioners:
Men

Women

Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners
Men

Women

25 February
2018
%

2.50
3.70
3.00
.20
2,20

23.0

25.1

24.7
27.0

kKl
December
2017

%

2.40
aA70
3.00
320
220

229

250

247
26.9

No allowance is made for the commutation of pensions to lump sums. The longevity for future pensioners
reflects Wfe expectancies for a future pensioner currently 50 years old, so that rates are not distorted by

changes to the average age of the membership.

As a result of the event discussed in the Strategic Report, the pension assets and habilities were

transferred to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited on 25 February 2018,
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21,

22,

23,

Operating lease commitments

At 29 December 2018 the Company had future minimumn lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases as follows: .

29 30
December December
2018 2017
£ £
Not later than 1 year - 1,470,000
- 1,470,000
Called up share capital
29 30
December Dacember
2018 2017
f f
Allotted and fully paid
11,250,000 (30 December 2017:11,250,000) Ordinary shares of
£0.00000008888 (30 December 2017: £1) each 1 11,250,000

On 25 February 2018 a capital reduction occurred, using a solvency statement pursuant to section 642 of
the Companies Act 2016, on 11,249,999 ordinary shares of £1 each and the share premium of
£96,000,000, resulting in the creat:on of £107,249,999 of distributable reserves.

Dividends
29 30
Decembaer December
2018 2017
£ £
Di\;udends of £62.2222222 per share {2017, £nil) paid during the period 700,000,600

Page 37



The Wrigley Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Period Ended 29 December 2018

24.

25,

Related party transactions

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Wrigley Uno UK Limited and 1s included in the
consalidated financial statements of Wrigley International Holding Company. Consequently, the Company
has taken exemption from disclosing retated party transactions under the terms of paragraph 1.12 of FRS
102.

in 2017, and up to the date of transfer to Mars Wrigley Confectionery UK Limited, the Company
sublicensed rghts 1o utilse and exploit Wrigley intellectual property to Mars Foods Ireland Limited. Under
this arrangement, Mars Foods Ireland Limited performs sales, marketing and distribution activities as welt
as provides certain administrative services, and in exchange The Wrigley Company Limited receives a
licensing fee.

Controlling party

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking and controling party is Mars, Incorporated a company
incorporated in the State of Delaware, USA. This is the largest group of undertakings to consolidate these
financial statements as at 29 December 2018 These financial statements are not available to the pubtic.

The Company's immediate pareni undertaking is Wrigley Uno UK Limited, a company registered in
£ngland and Wales.

Wrigley International Holding Company is the parent undertaking of the smallest group of undertakings to
consolidate these financial statements. A copy of these financial statements will be submitted alongside
these financial statements and may be obtained from The Registrar of Companies, Companies
Registration Office, Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff, CF14 3UzZ.

Wrigley International Holding Company's registered office is The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation
Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington DE 19801, United States.
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Directors of Wrigley Enternaticnal Holding Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Wrigley International Holding
Company and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 29, 2018
and December 30, 2017, and the related censolidated statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in stockholders’ investment and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America;
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consalidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with avditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the andit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
o fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the
Company's preparation and fair presentation of the consclidated financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In ocur upinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Wrigley International Holding Company and its subsidiaries as of
December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for
the vears then ended in accerdance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in Notes 1 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has entered into

significant transactions with Mars, Incorporated and its subsidiaries, a related party. Qur opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter. B

pmw Le P

August 23, 2019

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 1800 Tysons Boulevard, McLean, VA 22102-4261
T: (703) 918 3000, F: (703} 918 3100, www pwe.LOm/us



WRIGLEY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 29, 2018 AND DECEMBER 30,2017

USD in thowsands

Net sales
Cost of products sold

Selling, general and administrative expense
Amortization of intangtble assets
impairment of intangible assets

Income from operations

Interest expense

Interest {income) expense (from) with Mars, net
Investment income, net

Foreign exchange loss (income). net

Gain on sale of business

Earnings from equity investment

Income before provisien for income taxes

Provision for income taxes
Net income

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net income attributable to Wrigley International Holding Company $ 1,775,550 §%

2018 2017
$ 16667873 $ 15,738,574
10,004,435 9,299,347
6,663,438 6,439,227
4,183,319 4,107,577
236,396 276,612
— 7629
3,243,723 3.047,409
16,446 12,464
(98,601) 112,618
(39,186) (7,015)
5,713 (72,807)
(127,230} -
(79,689) (129,428)
2,566,270 2,131,577
786,950 817.357
1,779,320 1,314,220
3,770 802
1313418

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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WRIGLEY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 29, 2018 AND DECEMBER 30, 2017
USD in thousands

2018 2007

Net income $ 1779320 8 1,314220
Other comprehensive {loss) income, net of tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments (1,052.264) 1,412,082

Net unrealized change on investments (57,613) 67,699

Net change in pension and other postretirement benefits 195,540 (166.661)
Total comprehensive income 864,983 2,627,310
Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests 3.659 802

Comprehensive income attributable to Wrigley International Holding Company  $ 861,324 $ 2.626,508

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



WRIGLEY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 29, 2018 AND DECEMBER 30, 2017

USD in thousaads
1018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income by 1,779.320 % 1.314220
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities, net of the impact of acquisitions and divestitures:
Depreciation and amortization 670,665 729,441
Impairments of imangible assets — 71629
Forcign exchange loss (income) 5713 (72,807)
Gain on sale of business (127.230) -
Eamings from equity investment (79,689) (129,428)
Amortization of deferred financing costs - - 448
Gain on investments (14,583) (10,166)
Deferred income taxes 30,040 {186,96T)
Changes in current asscts and liabilities:
Changes in accounts receivable (158,977 (73,291)
Changes in inventories (153,933) (98,044)
Changes in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 417,092 295,683
Changes in accrued interest - (2,691)
Changes in income taxcs reccivable and payable 108,464 393,145
Changes in other current assets and liabilities 3,028 (9.364)
Changes in other noncurment investments 230 3,984
Changes in other noncurrent associate benefit assets and liabilities (313,423 {96,081)
Changes in other noncurrent assets and liabilities 11,112 38,875
Nct cash provided by operating activities 2,157,824 2,104,586
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures (668,361) (622,127
Purch of inv (8,305) (105,037)
Sales of investments 130,766 59,422
Acquisition of busineas — (171,197}
Proceeds from sale of business 108,460 —
Other 9,309 10,054
Net cash used in investing activities {428,131) (829.485)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of long-term deit (725) -
Dividends paid (47,854) (487,147)
Net transfers to Mars (2.811,787) (424,034)
Onher short-term financing activities 98 293 4,531
Net cash used in financing activitics (2,762,073) (5906.630)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (19.321) 97,022
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,051,701 465473
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 2,184,824 1,719,351
Cesh and cash cquivalents a1 end of year 3 L1323 3 2184824

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



WRIGLEY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 29, 2018 AND DECEMBER 30, 2017
USD in thousands, except par value and shares

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments '
Due from Mars, net

Accounts receivable, net of
Inventories

Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net
Prepaid associate benefit assets

Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Deferred income taxes
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Due to banks

Current installments on long-term debt

Current portion of accrued associate benefits
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current instaliments

Accrued associate benefits
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

STOCKHOLDERS INVESTMENT
Commeon stock, par value $0.01 per share, 106 shares authorized,

issued and outstanding
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

TOTAL WRIGLEY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING COMPANY
STOCKHOLDERS' INVESTMENT

Noncontrolling interests
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS'
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

2018 2017

$ 1133123 S 2,184,824
456,016 645,536
8,743,355 6,010,306
allowances of §21,773 and $27,657 722017 630,679
1,251,479 1,202,772
80,594 118,190
205,424 212,372
12,592,008 11,004,679
3.287.643 3,362,706
429,966 234,879
5,532,708 5,817,925
579,621 859,377
763.144 789,831
756,153 765,476

$ 23941243 § 22834873
$ 106217 % 9913
963 - 728

17,887 19,805
4,494,286 4,390,481
144,767 149218
4,764,140 4,570,145
3,946 4933
2217016 2,519.95]
138,121 111,216
492710 492 428
7.615.933 TH98.673
17,044,073 16,662,482
5.617.544 3,899,426
(6,382,652)  {5,468.426)
16,278,965 15,093,482
46,345 42,718
INVESTMENT 6325310 15,136,200
STOCKHOLDERS' INVESTMENT S 23,941,243 8 22.834873

[ he accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated tinancial statements.
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WRIGLEY INTERNATIONAL HOLDING COMPANY
NOTES TQ CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 29, 2018 AND DECEMBER 30, 2017
(USD) in thousands, unless otherwise noted)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

and Reorganization

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Wrigley Intemationa! Holding Company
(“WIHC” and together, with its subsidiaries, the “Company™), a wholly owned subsidiary of Mars,
Incorporated (together with its subsidiaries, “Mars” or with its subsidiaries excluding the Company,
the “Parent™). WIHC was established as a Delaware limited liability corporation (“LLC"™) on October
9, 2009. In connection with a reorganization of Mars® legal entity structure, WIHC was converted from
a LLC 1o a corporation oni June 2, 2017. The Parent was the sole member prior to the conversion and
became the sole stockholder after the conversion.

During the fiscal years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, Mars contributed certain
subsidiaries to the Company as part of a global reorganization. The contributions were transfers of
entities under common control and all periods presented reflect the financial position, results of
operations and cash flows of these entities as if they had been contributed to the Company as of October
9, 2009, the date WIHC was established. The consolidated financial statements do not give effect 10
contributions to the Company subsequent to December 29, 2018,

The consolidated financial statements include subsidiaries in which & controlling interest is maintained
and variable interest emities (*VIEs”) for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. For the
consolidated subsidiaries in which the Company’s ownership is less than 100 percent, the minority
stockholders' interests are shown as noncontrolling interests (“NCI™). Investments in affiliates over
which the Company has significant influence but not a controlling interest are carried or the equity
basis. Investments in affiliates over which the Company does not have significant influence are
accounted for by the cost method or as available-for-sale securities. All intercompany accounts and
transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

The Company’s fiscal year consists of 52 or 53 weeks. The fiscal years ended December 29, 2018 and
December 30, 2017 are 52 weeks.

Use of Estirnates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of sales, costs and expenses, assets and liabilities, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemnents

There are no standards effective in the current year that have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements. The Company is evaluating the impact on the consolidaled financial statements
for the following standards effective in future years:



InMay 2014, the FASB issued a new accounting standard on revenue recognition. The standard requires
an entity to recognize revenue for the transfer of goods or services to customers for an amount the
entity expects to be entitied to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The standard is effective
for the Company in its fiscal year-end annual 2019 consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting standard is not expected to have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2016, the FASB amended accounting standards requiring all equity investments to be
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized through net income except for investments
accourted for under the equity method of accounting or those investments that result in consolidation
of the investee. The amendments allow cost method investments to be remeasured at fair value either
upon occurrence of an observable price change or upon dentification of an impairment. The standard
is effective for the Company in its fiscal year-end annual 2019 consolidated financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued a new cash flow classification standard intended to reduce diversity
in practice in how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement
of cash flows. The standard is effective for the Company in its fiscal year-end annual 2019 consolidated
financial statements. The guidance requires application using a retroactive transition method.

In October 2016, the FASB issued a new standard related to the income tax consoquences of intra-
entity transfers of assets other than inventory intended 1o reduce diversity in practice and to
appropriately present the economics of intra-entity asset transfers. Current guidance prohibits the
recognition of current and deferred income taxes for an intra-entity ssset transfer until the asset has
been sold to an outside party. However, the new standard states that an entity should recognize the
income tax consequences of an intra-entity transfer of an asset other than inventory when the transfer
occurs. This standard is effective for the Company in fiscal year 2019 with early adoption permitted.
Entities are required to apply the update on a modified retroactive basis through a cumulative-cffect
adjusiment directly to retained eamings as of the beginning of the period of adoption.

In November 2016, the FASB issued a new cash flow standard intended to reduce diversity in practice
in how restricted cash has been classified and presented in the statement of cash flows. The new
guidance requires restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents to be included with cash and cash
equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the
statemnent of cash flows. The standard is effective for the Company in its fiscal year-end annual 2019
consolidated financial statements. The guidance should be applied using a retrospective transition
method to each period presented with early adoption permitted.

In March 2017, the FASB issued guidance updating the presentation of net periodic pension and
postretirement benefit costs. This update requires that the service cost component be disaggregated
from the other components of net periodic benefit costs. In addition, the update requires that only
service cost can be included as an associate cost within the operating section of the income staternent
and only the service cost component will be cligible for capitalization. The guidance will be applied
retrospectively to 2018, with a prospective approach taken for capitalization of service costs and is
effective for the Compeany in fiscal year-end annual 2019 consolidated financial statements.

In February 2018, the FASB issued updated guidance related to reporting comprehensive income, The
amendments in the update allow for a one-time reclassification from accumulated cther comprehensive
loss to retained eamings for stranded tax effects as a resukt from the enactment of the Tax Cuts and
Jobs Act of 2017. The updste also requires additional disclosure related t¢ mcome tax effects from
accumnulated other comprehensive income. The updated guidance is effective for all entities for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2018. The updated guidance should be applied either in the period
of adoption or retrospectively to each period (or periods) in which the effect of the change in the 2017

9



Tax Act is recognized. The Company does not expect to elect the one-time reclassification, however,
will adopt the additional disclosure requirements.

In February 2016, the FASB issued new accounting guidance which requires lessees to recognize
virtually all of their leases on the balance sheet by recording right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
Under the new guidance, there will be a dual model for income statement recognition. Operating leases
will result in straight-line expense recognition included in either cost of products sold or selling, general
and administration expense, Finance leases will result in front-loaded expense recognition included
in interest expense and straight-line depreciation expense included in either cost of products sold or
sclling, general and administration expense. The guidance requires entitics to use & modified
retrospective approach for leases that exist or are entered into after the beginning of the earliest
comparative period in the financial statements. In July 2018, the FASB issued additional guidance that
allows for an election to apply the transition requirements at the effective date rather than at the
beginning of the earliest comparstive period. Entities electing this transition option would recognize
a cumulative-cffect adjustment o retained camings in the period of adoption and the comparative
periods presented would continue 1o be in accordance with the current lease standard. The stendard is
effective for the Company in its fiscal year-end annual 2020 consolidated financia! statements.

In August 2017, the FASB issued guidance improving financial reporting of hedging relationships o
better portray the economic results of an entity's risk management activities for all entities that apply
hedge accounting. The update (i) more closely aligns the results of cash flow and fair value hedge
accounting with risk management activities through changes to both the designation and measurement
guidance for gualifying hedging relationships and the presentation of hedge results in the financial
statements, (ii) expands hedge accounting for both nonfinancial and financial risk components, and
(iii) refines the. measurement of hedge results o better reflect an entity’s hedging strategies. The
amendment aligns the timing of recognition of hedge results with the eamings effect of the hedged
item for cash flow and net investment hedges by including the eamings effect of the hedging instrument
in the same income statement line item in which the earnings effect of the hedged item is presented.
This guidance will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2020.

In August 2018, the FASB issued guidance clarifying the treatment of costs incurred to implement
cloud computing arrangements as a service. This update requires that certain implementation costs
related 1o cioud computing arrangements as a service be capitalized using the criteria in existing
internal-use software guidance. Capitalized costs are required to be presented as an asset and expensed
over the term of the arrangement. Material capitalized costs are required to be disciosed in a manner
consistent with the disclosure requirements of property, plant and equipment. The guidance can be
applied retrospectively or prospectively and will be effective for the Company in fiscal year 2021,
with early adoption permitted for any period.

In June 2016, the FASH issued a new credit loss siandard that changes the impairment model for most
financial assets and certain other instruments. Under the new guidance, entities are required to use a
new forward-looking “expected loss™ mode! which will result in earlier measurement of credit losses
than under the carrent incurred loss model. In November 2018, the FASB issued an update extending
the cffective date of the standard for the Company to fiscal year 2022, with early adoption permitted
as of fiscal year 2019.

Forgi Translation

The Company uses the current rate method of translating foreign currency financial statements, except
for countries deemed to be highly inflationary for which » combination of current and historical
exchange rates are used and any translation adjustments are included in net income. Gains and logses
on translation of equity interests in subsidiaries outside the United States of America (“U.S.™) and
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intercompany notes of a long-term investment nature are reported in accumulated other comprehensive
loss, net of tax, within stockholders’ investment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Argentina's 3-year cumulative inflation rate exceeded 100% in 2018. As a result, in 2018, Argentina
was considered highly inflationary in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Consequently, the Company
transitioned its Argentine operations to highly inflationary status as of June 17, 2018. Accordingly,
the functional currency for units in Argentina have changed to the currency of its immediate parent
{Euro). This change in fumctional currency did not have a material impact on the Company’s results
of operations, financial condition or financial statement disclosures for the period ended December
29, 2018.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, interest and non-interest bearing bank deposits and
securities with original maturities of three months or less.

Cash Flows

Cash payments for interest were $14 million and $13 million for the years ended December 29, 2018
and December 30, 2017, respectively. Net cash payments for income taxes were $591 million and
$624 million for the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively.

The Company engaged in significant non-cash financing activitics mainly with related parties. These
non-cash transactions are described in Note 13 “Related Parties”.

R R -

Revenue is recognized when the eamings process is complete. Generally, this occurs when products
are shipped in accordance with terms of agreements, title and risk of loss transfer o customers,
collection is probabie, and pricing is fixed or determinable. The Company recognizes allowances for
estimated returns, discounts, promotions, and incentives in the period when the sale is recognized.
The allowances are estimated based on historical experience and other factors and are included in net
sales in the Conselidated Statements of Income.

During the years ended December 29, 2018 and Decembet 30, 2017, the Company did not have a
customer that accounted for 10 percent or more of net sales.

Investments

Investments in debt and equity securities are generally classified as available-for-sale and are reported
at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from income and included as a separate
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax. Realized gains and losses on the sales
of these securities are computed based on the specific identification method and are included in income.

Investments are considered to be impaired when a decline in fair value is judged to be other-than-
temporary. The Company considers factors affecting the issuer, factors affecting the industry the issuer
operates within, and general debt and equity market trends. The Company considers the length of time
an investment’s fair value has been below camrying value, the severity of the decline, the near term
prospects for recovery to cost, and the Company'’s intent and ability to hold the investment until maturity
or market recovery is realized. If and when a determination is made that a decline in fair value below
the cost basis is other-than-temporary, the related investment {s written down to its estimated fair value

through a charge 10 eamings.



Accoums Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at nef reafizable value. This value includes an allowance for
estimated uncollectible accounts to reflect any loss anticipated on the trade accounts receivable
bafances. The allowance for doubtful accounts represents the Company’s estimate of the amount of
probable credit losses in existing accounts receivable, as determined from areview of past due balances

and other relevant information.
Inventones

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The Company uses the first-in, first-out method
in determining the majority of s inventory costs.

Inventories consist of the following as of December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017:

2018 2017
Finished goods 5 918964 § 868,758
Raw materials 332,518 334014

$ L251479 § 1202772

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. Routine repair and maintenance costs are expensed
as incurred. Depreciation expense during the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017
was $422 million and $438 million, respectively.

Depreciation is generally provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
related assets for financizl reponting purposes. The estimated useful lives of depreciable property, plant
and equipment generally are as follows:

Category Years
Buildings 20
Building improvements and fixtures 12
Machinery and equipment 10
Office equipment 6
Computer equipment 3

Impairment Evaluation of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews property, piant and equipment and finite-lived intangibles for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
be fully recoverable. This evaluation includes comparing future undiscounted cash flows relating 1o
the assets, or the appropriate grouping of assets_ over the remaining Jife of such assets 10 the net book
value of those assets. If the projected cash flows are less than the net book value, an impairment loss
is measured based on the excess of the net book value over the estimated fair value of the asset.

Intangible Assets

The Company reviews intangible assets with indefinite lives for impainment annually during the fourth
quaner and whenever events or changes in circumstances occur which would indicate the camying
12



value of its assets may not be fully recoverable to determine if the current value of intangible assets
is impaired. The Company is given the option to make a qualitative evaluation of intangible asset
impairment to determine whether it is necessary to calculate the fair value of the intangible assets. The
Company makes its qualitative evaluation of its intangible assets by considering, among other things,
the overall macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, overall financial
performance and other retevant reporting unit specific events. If the Company determines, based on
the qualitative evaluation that it is more likely than not that the fair value is less than its carrying
amount, the Company would then perform & quantitative analysis. However, if the Company concludes
otherwise, the intangible asset is not considered impaired. The Company performs the quantitative
analysis by comparing the fair value of the intangible asset to its carrying value. If the intangible asset’s
fair value exceeds its carrying value, it is not impaired. 1f the intangible asset’s carrying value exceeds
its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the intangible asset to its fair value.

For finite-tived intangible assets, amontization is generally provided on the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the related assets for financial reporting purposes. The estimated useful
lives of finite-lived intangible assets are as fotlows:

Category Years
Trademarks 14 to 40
Customer relationships 10 to 15
Patents 8 o 11
Other intangibles (e.g., agreements) 2 10 10
Goodwill

The Company assesses its goodwil] for impairment annually during the fourth quarter and whenever
events or changes in circumstences occur indicating the carrying value of its net assets may not be
fully recoverable. The Company is given the option to make a qualilative evaluation of goodwill
impainnent to determine whether it is necessary to calculate the fair value of its reporting units. The
Company makes its qualitative evaluation of its goodwill by considering, among other things, the
overall macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, overall financial performance
and other relevant reporting unit specific events. Based on the qualitative evaluation, if the Company
determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying
amount, the Company would then perform the two-step impairment test. However, if the Company
concludes otherwise, goodwill is not considered impaired.

The first step of the two-step impairment test compares the fair value of each reporting unit with its
carrying value. If the fair value of a reporting unit exceeds the carrying value of the net assets assigned
to that reporting unit, goodwil! is not considered impaired and no further testing is required. If the
carrying value of the net assets assigned to that reporting unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting
unit, the Company must perform the second sicp of the impairment test to determine the implied fair
value of the reporting unit’s goodwill. If the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds
its implied fair value, then an impairment loss is recorded to write down the goodwill to its implied
fair value. Determining the fair value of a reporting unit involves the use of significant estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include projected revenue growth rates, operating
margins, discount rates, capital expenditures and related depreciation to calculate estimated cash flows.
In addition, certain judgments and assumptions are made in allocating shared assets and liabilities to
determine the carrying values of reporting units.



Pension_Benefit Costs

The Company recognizes gains and losses resulting from the settlement of pension obligations in
certain defined benefit pension plans as they occur. In addition, when a lump sum payment is made
for certain defined benefit pension plans, all deferred gains and losses are immediately recognized.

In a fiscal year end that does not coincide with a month-end, the Company measures the assets and
obligations of the defined benefit plan using the month-end that is closest to the Company s fiscal year
end.

Saftware Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs incurred in the development of internal-use software. Such
costs include external direct costs of materials and licenses, payroll and payroli-related costs for
associates directly involved in the development of internal-use software, and related interest costs.
These capitalized costs are included in other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and are
amortized over useful livesof 3 to § years on a straight-line basis. Amortization of capitalized software
costs is included in selling, general and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Income.

As of Decemnber 26, 2018 and December 30, 2017, other assets included capitalized software costs as
follows:

2018 2017
Capitalized software $ 180,861 § 143,327
Less: accumulated amortization (107,853) (100,858)

5 73008 5 42469

Amoftization expense associated with capitalized software during the years ended December 29,2018
and December 30, 2017 was $14 million and $12 million, respectively.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed in the period incurred. Advertising costs of $612 million and $628
million for the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively, were included
in selling, general and administrative expense.

Research and Development

Rescarch and development costs are expensed as incurred end include the costs to design, develop,
test, deploy, and enhance the Company’s products. Research and development costs of $202 million
and $246 million for the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively, were
included in selling, general and administrative expense.

Distribution Costs

Distribution costs, including shipping and handting costs, are classified as cost of products sold.

Derivatives

All derivative financial instruments are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheels at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognized either in net income or other comprehensive income, depending
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on whether the derivative is designated as a hedge, the nature of the undertying exposure being hedged,
and how effective the derivative is at offsetting price movements in the underlying exposure.
Derivatives are used solely for risk management purposes and are either designated as hedges or used
as economic hedges. See Note 8, Financial instruments, for additional information.

The Company's operations give rise to exposure to market risks. Generally, derivative financial
instrurnents are utilized to reduce those risks. The Company enters into forward exchange contracts
and options for the purchase and sale of foreign currencies as part of the management of its foreign
currency exposures, These exposures arise primarily from anticipated purchases of certain raw
materials, sales of the Company’s products in foreign currencies, debt and interest payments,
investments in foreign subsidiaries and intercompany financing activities.

The Company, in the normal course of production, uses large quantities of cocoa, sugar, grains and
other commeodities. Prices for these commodities fluctuate due to changes in the supply and demand
for the commodities and changes in the rates of exchange for the currencies in which they are traded.
To hedge price risk associated with its anticipated purchases of these commodities, the Company buys
and sells futures contracis for the commodities and forward contracts and options for the related
currencies.

Fair values of derivative assets and liabilities not traded either on exchanges or liquid, over-the-counter
markets arc determined by quantitative models primarily based on market observable inputs, including
market interest rate curves and referenced credit spreads. Most market inputs are actively quoted and
can be validated through external sources, including brokers, market transactions and third-party
pricing services. The Company considers the need to adjust the fair values of derivative assets and
liabilities for counterparty credit quality and non-performance risk.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to account for income taxes at the entity level for single member LLCs.
As such, while WIHC was converted from a LLC to a corporation in 2017, such conversion has no
impact on the income tax accounting within the separate company financial statements.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected future tax consequences of
events that have been included in the financial statements or tax retumns, and are determined annually
based on the difference between financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted
tax laws and rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income.
Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts
expected to be realized. The Company provides U.S. federal income taxes for earnings and certain
other estimated future cash amounts of non-U.S. subsidiaries that are expected to be remitted in the
foreseeable future,

The Company has not recorded deferred taxes related to the portion of its ownership in foreign
subsidiaries which it considers permanently reinvested. The amount of this unrecognized U S. deferred
tax liability is not material. Global intangible low-taxed income (**GILTI™) provisions in the U.S. tax
code impose a tax on foreign income in excess of a deemed return on tangible assets of foreign
corporations. The Company has elected to treat any potential GILTI inclusions as a period cost.
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Fair Valye

Fair value is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid 1o
transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants. Market or observable inputs are the most
persuasive source of values, followed by assumptions based on hypothetical transactions in the absence
of market inputs.

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into
the following three levels, in order of reliability, as described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active or financial instruments for which all significant
inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly; quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; and
model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are
observable;

Level 3: Significant inputs to the valuation model are unobservable.

Significant transfers between levels are recognized at the end of the reporting period. The camying
amounts of short-term financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, receivables, and
certain other liabilities are reasonable estimates of fair value duc to the short-term nature of these
instruments.

Loans due from and payable to related parties

The Company has various notes payable to and receivable from related parties under common contro)
with fts Parent. The Parent generally has the unilateral ability to modify its global intercompany capital
structure, which includes modifying intercompany notc agreements to accelerate payment. As the
Company’s related party notes may be modified at the Parent’s discretion, these positions are presented
on a net basis and ¢lassified as current in the Consolidated Balance Sheets unless otherwise disclosed.

ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES
Preferred Brands International Inc.

On November 2, 2017, the Company purchased 100% of Preferred Brands International Inc. Preferred
Brands Intermational Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (“PBI™) operate as a fully integrated
manufacturer and marketer of all-natural, ready-to-heat Indian and Asian food products sold primarily
under the Tasty Bite brand. PBI’s portfolio includes 8 wide range of vegetarian offerings, including
Indian and Asian entrees, spice and simmer meal kits, and organic rice and lentils. While the majority
of sales are generated in the U.S. and Canada, PB{ also manufactures products that are sold through
retailers in the U.K. and Australia and to food service providers in India. PB1 owns 74.2% of Tasty
Bite Eatables Limited India (“TBEL™), TBEL manufactures all PB) products and has third party sales
in Asia.

The Company acquired PBI for $171 million in cash (net of cash acquired of $3 million). The Company

incurred acquisition-related costs during 2017 of $6 million which were included in selling, general
and administrative expenses in the 2017 Consolidated Statements of Income. Additionally, the
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Parent incurred acquisition-related costs of $1 mitlion and $6 million for the vears ended December
29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively, on behalf of the Company.

The eamnings of PBI have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company
beginning November 2. 201 7. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the tangible net
assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired was recognized as goodwill and is attributable to the
growth that the Company expects to realize from this acquisition. Goodwill generated from the
acquisition is not deductible for tax purposes.

As of the acquisition date. the purchase price assigned to the acquired assets and assumed lizbilities
is summarized as follows:

Cash acquired $ 2,864
Other current and non-current assets 39376
Property, plant, and equipment 18,139
Intangible assets:

Trademarks finite-lived 16,000

Customer relationships 101,500

Other intangible asseis - . 700
Goodwill 104,012
Total assets acquired . 282,591
Total current liabilities assumed (18,944)
TFotal long-term liabilities assumed : - {52,786)
Net assets acquired . 210,861,
Noncontrolling interests ) (36,800)
Company acquired interests §- 174,061

[n 2018, the Company finalized the purchase price ailocation of PBI. The primary change from the
preliminary purchase price allocation was to reduce finite lived intangible assets by $19 miilion, reduce
deferred tax liabilities by $7 million, increase property, plant, and equipment by $6 million, and increase
goodwill by $7 million. The cumulative impact of the changes in the purchase price allocation was
recorded through the 2018 Consolidated Statement of Income.

‘The estimated useful lives of the identifiable finite-tived intangible assets from the acquisition include
the following: trademarks, 14 years; customer refationships, |3 to 14 years; other intangible assets, 3
years.

Divestitures

On December 27, 2018, the Company sold its drinks business, and the buyer paid $108 million, net
of $35 million cash sold, as the final sales price. The Company realized a gain of $127 million from
the sale of the business.

INVESTMENT IN MARS RUSSIA

The Company has a 37.2% ownership interest in Mars Limited Liability Company (“Mars Russia™),
a Russian domiciled entity in which the Parent holds a controtling interest. The investment in Mars
Russia is ¢lassified as an equity method investment as the Company has significant influence over
Mars Russia. The investment of $648 million and $6 14 million &s of December 29, 2018 and December
30, 2017, respectively. is recorded in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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INVESTMENTS

The investments included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets were as follows:

Location on the

Consclidated Balance Sheet 2018 2017
Available-for-sale securities Investments § 456,016 § 645536
Available-for-sale securities Other assets 17,421 17,979
Total available-for-sale securities 473,437 663,515
Other long-term investments Other assets 11,298 13,851
Total investments $ 484,735 § 677366

Gross realized gains and losses on the sales of investments were $14 million and $1 million,
respectively, for the year ended December 29, 2018 and $9 million and 30 million, respectively, for
the year ended December 3). 2017, and have been included in mvestment income, net in the
Consolidated Statements of Incone.

As of December 29, 2018, the Company s investments in available-for-sale debt and equity securities
were as follows:

Unrealized Unrealized  Recorded

Cost basts gain loss basis
Equity $ 32998 § 104614 § (271) $ 434,329
Corporate debt 34,382 350 — 34,732
Other 4,376 4,376

$ 368,744 § 104964 § (271) § 473437

As of December 29, 2018, there were no investments with continucus unrealized losses for 12 months
or greater. The investments with continuous unrealized losses for less than 12 months and their related
fair values were as follows:

Unrealized
Fair value loss

Equity $ 6561 § 271

As of December 29, 2018, the Company’s investments in available-for-sale debt securities totaling
£35 miflion mature between 5 and 0 years

As of December 30, 2017, the Company’s investments in available-for-sale debl and equity securities
were as follows: ’ .

Unrealized Unrealized  Recorded

Coslt basis pain loss basis
Equity $ 389039 § 62082 % $ 551,121
Corporate debt 88,571 1,239 e £9,810
Other 23,407 (823) 22,584

$ 501,087 § 163321 % (823) § 663,515




(%)

As of December 30, 2017, there were no investments with continuous unrealized losses for 12 months
or greater. The investments with continuous unrealized losses for less than 12 months and their related
fair values were as follows:

Unrealized
Fair value loss

18,101 § 823

Other $

Investments measured at fair value on a recurting basis were categorized as follows at December 29,
2018:

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity $ 100,592 § 333,737 § $ 434329
Corporate debt - 34,732 34,732
Other 4,376 - 4376
£ 100,592 § 372845 § — $ 473437

[nvestments measured at fair value on a recurring basis were categorized as follows at December 30,

2017:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity $ 105,187 § 445934 % $ 551,120
Corporate debt " 895,810 — §9,810
Other - 22,584 — 22,584
$ 105,187 § 558328 § -— § 663515

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS

The Company sponsors various pension plans, all of which are located outside of the United States. The
benefit obligations and related assumptions, plan assets, and funded status of the Company s pension
and other postretirement benefit plans as of December 29, 2018 were as follows:

Other

postretirement

Pension plans  benefit plans
Benefit obligation $ 11,236,604 § 14,283
Fair value of plan assets 9,450,306 .
Funded status $ (1,786,298) § (14,283)
Accumulated benefli obligation $ 10,573,406 N/A




The benefit obligations and related assumptions, plan assets, and funded status of the Company’s pension
and other postretirement benefit plans as of December 30, 2017 were as follows:

Other
postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans
Benefit obligation $ 12455287 § 16,179
Fair value of plan assets 10,169.873
Funded status S (2,285414) § {16,179)
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 11,519,629 N/A

Pension and other postretirement benefit plans with obligations in excess of plan assels as of
December 29, 2018 consist of the following:

Other
. postretirement
Pensiap plans  benefit plans
Benefit obligation $ 3847768 § 14,283
Fair value of plan assets 1,631,504 . N/A

Pension and other postretirement benefit plans with obligations in excess of plan assets as of
December 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Other
. postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans
Bencfit obligation § 4553665 § 16,179
Fair value of plan assets 2,033,172 N/A

Pension and other postretirement benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan
assets as of December 29, 2018 consist of the following:

Other
) postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans

Accumulated benefit obligation $ 3,289,964 N/A
Fair value of plan assets 1,463,336 NA

Weighted-average assumptions to determine benefit obligations:

Discount rate 2.47% 3.63%
Rate of increase in future
compensation levels 31.52% N/A
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Pension and other postretirement benefit plans with accumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan
assets as of December 30, 2017 consist of the following:

Qther
postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans
Accumulated benefit obligation § 3,781,235 N/A
Fair value of plan assets 1,804,674 N/A

Weighted-average assumptions lo determine benefit obligations:
Discount rate 2.36% 3.62%
Rate of increase in future

compensation levels 155% N/A

Net periodic benefit cost {(income), and related assumptions, contributions and benefits paid for the year
ended December 29, 2018 were as follows:

Other
postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans
Net periodic benefit cost $ 66,500 S (1,231)
Employer contribution 173,998 1,017
Participant contributions 528 -
Benefits paid 173,391 1,017
Weighted-average assumptions 1o determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 2.36% 3.62%
Expected long-term rate of
return on plan assets 7.31% NA
Rate of increase in futurc .
compensation levels 3.55% N/A

Net periodic benefit cost (income), and related assumptions, contributions and benefits paid for the year
ended December 30, 2017 were as follows:

Other
postretirementl
Pension plans  benefit plans
Net periodic benefit cost s 139,024 § (1,336)
Employer contribution 224,018 923
Participant contributions 486 -
Benefits paid 338,842 923
Weighled-average assumptions 10 determine net periodic benefit cost:
Discount rate 2.44% 31.75%
Expected long-term rate of
returm on plan assets 7.38% N/A
Rate of increase in future
compensation levels 361% N/A
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During the years ended December 2%, 2018 and December 30, 2017, the Company s net periodic benefit
costs included losses of $2 million and $1 million, respectivety. related to the seitlement and curtailment
of certain pension plan obligations.

For measurement purposes related to the other postretirement benefit plans, a 5% annual rate of increase
in the per capita cost of covered heaithcare benefits was assumed for the claims of all retirees in the
years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017. The healthcare cost trend rates are projected
to remain constant at 5% in 2019 and is reflective of the ultimate trend rate.

Amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 29. 2018 consisted of:
Other

. postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans

Prepaid associate benefit assets $ 429966 —
Current portion of accrued associate benefits 18,269 937
Accrued associate benefits, noncurrent 2,197,995 13,346
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Net loss $ (3,596,447) § (2,170}
Net prior service (cost) credit (54,112) 3,344
Deferred income tax 975,340 (257
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)
income, net of tax $ (2,675.219) § 957

Amourits recognized on the Consotidated Balance Sheet as of December 30, 2017 consisted of

Other
) postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans
Prepaid associate benefit assets $ 234879 §
Current portion of accrued associate benefits 17,823 992
Accrued associate benefits, noncurrent 2.502.470 15.187
Accumulated other comprehensive loss:
Net loss $ (3,868.930) § (2.892)
Net prior service (cost) credit (12,583} 5385
Deferred income tax 1,009,274 (56)
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income,
pet of tax $ (2,872,239) $ 2,437

22



Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended December 29, 2018 consisted
of:
Other

) postretirement
Pension plans  benefit plans

Reclassification to net income:

Amortization of net loss $ 270,821 % 35

Ameortization of prior service cost (credit) 4,461 (1.807)
Other movements during the year:

Net gain 5 1,662 % 687

Net prior service cost (45,990} (234)
Other comprehensive income (loss), gross 230,954 (1,319
Deferred income tax (33,934) (161)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax $ 197,020 § (1,480)

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income for the year ended Decemnber 30, 2017 consisted
of:
Other

. retirement
Pension plans  benefit plans

Reclassification 1o net income:

Amortization of net loss (gain) s 201,718 § {132)
Amortization of prior service cost {credit) 3,083 (1,742)
Orther movements during the year:

Net loss £ (511673 8 (234)
Net prior service (cost) credit (3.005) 555
Other comprehensive (loss) income, gross {219,937) (1,583)
Deferred income tax 54,780 19
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax £ (16515T) 8§ (1,534)

The estimated net loss and prior service cost that are expected to be amortized from accumulated other
comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost during 2019 are $197 million and $6 million,
respectively. The estimated net foss and prior service credit for other postretirement benefit plans that
are expected to be amortized from accumnulated other comprehensive loss into net periodic benefit cost
during 2019 are $0 million and $2 million, respectively.

Plan Assets

The Company’s expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is determined by the respective plans’
current asset allocation and estimated future long-term retums by asset class. Projections of overall
expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptions are formulated through a comprehensive process
incorporating economic and financial market theory, financial market history, and investment judgment.
Assumptions are predicated on, and consistent with, theory and are tested against history for
reasonableness.

The risk inherent in each asset class is considered to determine an appropriate retum expectation for
each asset class. The higher the risk, the higher the risk premium required relative to risk-free assets.
The investment return expectation for the portfolio is determined by weighting the expected retums for
each asset class by the percentage representation of that asset class within the portfolio and summing
the results.
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Plan assets for the most significant postretirement benefits have similar investment policies. The
Company's pension plans employ a long-term strategy driven by the expectation that squity ownership
will outperform debt securities over the long-term and by the principle that a higher funded status warrants
a closer match between assets and liabilities. Accordingly, the current target allocation for plan assets is
generally 45% - 55% in equity ownership, including publicly traded stock, real estate, and private equity,
40% - 50% in public and private debt securities, and 5% - 15% in hedge funds. For a number of plans
this will change in favor of public debt securities once their funded status and‘or the level of real interest
rates have increased. Currently, most investments are implemented through actively managed strategies
as opposed to passive index tracking approaches.

Investment risk is mitigated by maintaining appropriate diversification of investment assets and by
restricting deviation from investment pelicy of predetermined risk control ranges. The plans are permitied
to use derivative instruments for investment purposes for hedging underlying asset exposure and for
rebalancing the asset allocation.

Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical
expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this
table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy to the total retirement plan assets.

Pension pian assets measured at fair value as of December 29, 2018 were as follows:

Assets at fair value included in the fair value hierarchy

Levei | Level 2 Level 3 (g} Total

Equity securities {a) S 866,739 § -- 8 — § 866,739
Government debt securities (b) 45,730 961,856 ‘- 1.007,586
Corporate debt securities (b) 127,788 1,441,117 208 1,569,113
Real estate {c) 48,197 . 48,197
Hedge funds (d) 30,700 30,700
Private equity (¢} 37,630 37,630
Cash and cash equivalents 308,146 308,146
Other (f) 45,524 84,333 129,857

$ 1510454 § 2487306 3 208§ 3.997.968
Investments measured at NAV as a practical expedient for fair value
Equity securities (a} $ 1,861,518
Government debt securities (b) 417,841
Corporate debt securities (b) 259,211
Real estate (¢) 491,114
Hedge funds (d) 1,452.397
Private equity (e) 969 739
Cash and cash equivalents 518
Investments measured at NAV 5,452,338
Contributions made after measurement date -
Pension plan assets al fair value as of Decemnber 29, 2018 $ 9‘4501306
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®)

(c)

(d}

Pension plan assets measured at fair value as of December 30, 2017 were as follows:

Assets at fair value included in the fair value hierarchy

Level ) Level 2 Level3(g) Total

Equity securities (a) $ LI79,017 8 — 3 - 8 1L,179017
Govemment debt securities (b} 167,179 948,038 — 1,055,217
Corporate debt securities (b) 180,703 1,353,429 1,534,132
Real estate () 56,964 - 56,964
Hedge funds (d) 23,863 — - 23,863
Private equity (c) 34,674 — — 34,674
Cash and cash equivalents 486,629 - 486,629
Other (f) 32,469 56,157 12 £8,638

$ 2,001,498 § 2357624 $ 12 'S 4,459,134
investments measured at NAV as a practical expedient for fair value
Equity securities (a) $ 2,124,045
Government debt securities (b) 407,717
Corporate debt securities (b) 272912
Real estate (c) 602,950
Hedge funds (d) 1,388,302
Private equity (e} 914,813
Investments measured at NAV 5,710,739
Contributions made after measurement date - = N
Non-U.S. pension plan assets at fair value as of December 30, 2017 $ 10,169,873

For investments measured at fair value, this asset category is principally actively managed and consists
of large cap and small cap equities. For mvestments valued using NAV per share as s practical expedient,
this asset category class is principally comprised of commingied funds. Risk is comprised of both equity
market risk and risk associated with active manager decisions.

For investments measured at fair value, this asset category is principally comprised of publicly traded
sovereign debt, corporate credit, asset-backed securities and mortgage-backed securities. Most exposures
are actively managed. Sovereign (government) debt is concentrated in both the developed and emerging
markets. Sovereign debt exposure, from time to time, may be held in derivative form. Corporate credit
is concentrated in investment-grade securities, with some exposure to high yield categories. Asset-backed
and mortgage-backed securities are principally standard investment grade securities. A number of
European Plans also hold small allocations to non-publicly traded credit instruments. For investments
velued using NAV per share as a practical expedient, this asset category is principally comprised of fixed
income securities and commingled funds.

For investments measured at fair value, this asset category is principally comprised of global property
securities with quoted market prices. For investments valued using NAV per share as a practical expedient,
this asset category consists predeminantly of directly held, income producing, properties in the UK.
The UK. properties, which have been invested on behalf of the U K. and-Dutch Plans, are managed
with a value orientation and a focus on cash generation. The U.K. properties are currently concentrated
within the retail sectors. The directly held properties for the U.K. and Dutch Plans are valued through

independent third party appraisals.

For investrnents measured at fair value, this asset category is principally comprised of pooled funds with
quoted market prices. For investments valued using NAV per share as a practical expedient, this asset
category is comprised of broadly diversified strategies such as hedge funds and multi-asset strategy
funds combined in portfolios structured to, under most circumstances, deliver low NAV volatility while
delivering returns in line with fund objectives. Hedge fund NAVs are determined by the fund managers
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and are not publicly available while multi-asset strategy fund NAVS are often publicly available. NAVs
are generally determined, depending on the underlying portfolio positions, through a combination of
quoted market prices, market comparable data and model driven approaches.

{e) For investments measured at fair value, this asset category is principally comprised of pooled funds with
quoted market prices. For investments valued using NAV per share as a practical expedient, this asset
category consists of investiments in limited partmerships with holdings in leveraged buy-outs (“LBOs"),
venture capital and co-investments. LBOs comprise the majority of investments at approximately 60%
of holdings with the remainder split evenly between venture capital and co-investments. While the
porifolio of limited partnership investments is globally diversified, it is also primarily US-based.
Partnership vaiuations are determined by the limited partnerships' general partners based on the valuation
of underlying investments and are determined taking the following inputs into consideration: cost,
discounted cash flows, and market-based comparable data.

H For investments measured at fair value, this asset category is comprised primarily of derivative financial
instruments, principally futures comracts, for risk management purposes, interest rate swaps for interest
rate hedging purposes, and forward currency contracts. Forward and futures contracts are carried at fair
value based on closing exchange quotations. Interest rate swaps are carried at their market-to-market
value. For investments valued using the NAV per share practical expedient, this asset category is
comprised primarily of commingled funds that focus on distressed credits and equities, recapitalization
opportunities, and dislocations arising from specific events and forced-selling situations.

(g) The activity for the Level 3 assets is not significant for all years presented.
Cash Flows
Contributions by the Company to its funded pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans for the
next fiscal year are expected to be $%1 million and $0 million, respectively; however, actual contributions

may be affected by pension asset and liability valuations during the year.

Defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plan payments expected in future years are as

follows:
Other

. postretirement
Pension plans benefit plans
2019 $ 353332 § 951
2020 354,397 949
2021 367,246 953
2022 380,022 948
2023 395,378 936
2024-2028 - 2,094,084 3,799

Defined Contyibution Plans

The Company's contributiens to defined contribution retirement plans are based on the compensation
of covered associates. The Company’s contributions, all of which were charged to expense, were $46
million and $49 million for the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively.

{6) DEBT AND BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS
The long-term debt outstanding as of December 29, 2018 and December 30. 2017 was $5 million and

$6 million, respectively.
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Debt Maturities and Capitalized Interest

As of December 29, 2018, the Company's long term debt maturities during the next five years arc as
follows:

2019 $ 963
2020 963
2021 963
2022 869
2023 838
Thereafter 313
Total long-term debt 4909
Less: debt issuance costs —
Total long-term debt $ 4,909

For the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, the Company incurred interest
expense of $7 million and $8 million, respectively, which was capitalized as a component of property,
plant and equipment on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

As of December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, the Company had short-term borrowings due to
banks of $106 million and $10 million, respectively. The balances primarily consist of borrowings
under a bank overdraft facility that permits gross overdraft borrowings of up to £120 million.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’s results are included in the Mars consolidated U.S. tax retumn. The U.S. federal and
state provisions for income taxes are calculated using an allocation method consistent with the
principles of ASC 740, Income Taxes. Specifically, totai tax expense recorded in cach period reflects
an allocation of the Company’s share of the current and deferred tax expense reported within the Mars
financial statements.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arise primarily due to different methods for recording
depreciation and amortization for tax and financial reporting purposes, the timing of the recognition
of carnings of foreign subsidiaries, associate benefits and other accrued amounts. Valuation allowances
are included in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets with the related deferred tax assets.
Defearred tax assets have been established for domestic and foreign net operating loss carryforwards
and valuation allowances have been provided for those losses and credits that are not expected to be
realized. Benefits of net operating loss carryforwards of 587 million have various expiration dates
through the year 2038, and $34 million have no expiration dates.
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As of December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, the components of deferred income tax assets and
liabilities were as follows:

2018 2017
Deferred tax assets $ 843,600 $ 903,339
Valuation allowance 80,546 113,508
Net deferred tax assets 763,144 789 831
Deferred tax liabilities 138,121} 111,216

Deferred tax assets, net $ 625023 § 678,615

As of December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, the components of the provision for income taxes
were as follows;

2018 2017
Current tax provision $ 756,910 $1,004,324
Deferred tax provision 30,040 (186,967)
Total tax provision $ 786950 § 817,357

The effective tax rates are 30.7% and 38.3% for 2018 and 2017, respectively. In general, the effective
1ax rate varies from the U.S. statutory tax rate primarily due to the completion of accounting for U.S.
tax reform and differences related to the taxation of foreign operations.

Reserves for uncertain tax positions have been classified as other non-current liabilities in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet unless expected to be paid within one year. The net interest expense and
penaltics of $7 million and $10 miflion have been included in the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. Penalties refated to
uncertain tax positions are recognized as a component of the provision for income taxes and interest
is recognized as a component of interest expense. Total accrued interest and penalties of $96 million
and $91 million have been inciuded in non-current other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
as of December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively.

The Company is potentially subject to income tax audits in numerous jurisdictions in the U.S. and
internationally until the applicable statutes of limitations expire. Tax audits by their nature are often
complex and ¢An require several years to complete. Years still open to examination by 1ax autharities
in major jurisdictions include China (2006 onward), Canada (2013 onward), Mexico (2009 onward),
U.K. (2016 onward), and the US (2014 onward).

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. Congress enacted the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“Act™), which
significantly revised the U.S. tax code. Significant impacts of the Act included a reduction of the U.S.
corporate tax rate from 35% to 21% for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017 and a one-time
transition tax on undistributed eamnings and profits of forcign subsidiaries. As of December 30, 2017
the company had not completed the accounting for the effects of the Act. In accordance with Staff
Accounting Bulietin No. 118 (“SAB 118™), the Company made reasonable estimates related to: {1)
the tax effect of the tax rate change which ASC 740 required 1o be recognized in the period in which
the law was enacted; (2) the tax owed on the one-timne transition tax: (3) the re-measurement of deferred
taxes recorded or disclosed as permanently reinvested for outside basis differences related to unremitted
foreign eamings; and (4) the tax effects related to the realizability of future foreign tax eredits.
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The material components of the provisional amounts recognized as part of the Act in 2017 were as
follows:

2017
Re-measurement of U.S. deferred tax balances s 18092
One-time transition {ax 304,710
Total tax provision s 322,802
b o

SAB 118 allows for adjustments to provisional amounts during a measurement period of one year. In
2018, the Company completed its determination of the accounting implications of the Act, which
included recording an additional $85 million of tax expense related 1o the one-time transition tax. The
total one-time transition 1ax is $3%0 million.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The notional amounts of foreign exchange contracts and commodity contracts outstanding at
December 29, 2018 were $2,691 million and $595 million, respectively. The notional amounts of

foreign exchange contracts and commodity coniracts ou:s!andlng at December 30, 2017 were $3,013
million and $422 million, respectively.

As of December 29, 2018, the following derivatives were recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet:

Asset Liability
fair value fair value
Derivatives not designated as hedging mstruments:
Foreign exchange contracts $ 16938 § 1,900
Commodity contracts 6,171 493

5 23,109 3§ 2,393

As of December 30, 2017, the following derivatives were recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet:

Asset Liability
fair value fair value
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:
Foreign exchange contracts $ 11,823 § 7,992
Commodity contracts 8% —

£ 11912 % 7,992

The fair value of current derivative assets included within prepaid expenses and other was $17 million
and $12 million as of December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. The fair value of
noncurrent derivative assets included within other assets was $6 million and $0 million as of
December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. The fair value of current derivative liabilities
included within accounts payable and accrued liabilities was $2 million and $8 million as of
December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. The fair value of noncurrent derivative
liabilities included within other liabilities was $0 million as of December 29, 2018 and December 30,
2017,
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Economic Hedges

The Company enters inlo certain currency and commodity derivatives thal are not designated in hedge
relationships, which economically hedge certain risks related to the anticipated purchases of raw
materials, the sales of products in foreign currencies and investments in foreign operations. The refated
gains and losses are recognized immediately on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The effect of economic hedges on the Consolidaicd Statements of Income for the years ended
December 29, 201 8 and Decemnber 30, 2017 was:

Location of (loss) gain
recoghized in incomeon  (Loss) gain recoghized in

derivatives income on derivatives
2018 2017
Foreign exchange contracts Cost of products sold $ (16697 $ 8,700
Foreign exchange contracts Selling, general and
administrative expense 8,113 5,480
Foreign exchange contracts Foreign exchange loss - (743)
Commodity contracts Cost of products sold 83852 (23,594)

3 268 3 (10,157)

Derivative Assets and Ligbilities Measyred at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows as of December 29,
2018:;

{ross
amounts not
. offset in the
. Gross amounts of Gross Nel amounts  (onsolidated
recogmzed amounts presemed in Balance
assctsTabilnies ofisct in the the Sheet
Consolidaled  Consohdated
1evel Level Level ance Balance Cash Net
t 2 3 Sheet (1) Sheet coliatmal amount
Asgets
Foreign exchange contracts  § 335073 % H (22,135 % 16938 § - % 16938
Commodity contracts 6,171 637 {637) 6,171 - 6,171
$6,t71 $39073 % 637 3 (22.772; § 23,109 % - § 2309
Liabibitics
Foreign exchange contracts  § $24035 3 - 3 (22135 % 1900 % $ 1500
Commodity contracts 1.§30 637 493 (493} —
3 $24035 $1.130 3  (2277hH 3 2393 3§ 493) § 1900
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis were as follows as of December 30,
2017: T :

Gross
amounts not
offset in the
Gross amounts of Consolidated
recogmzed Gross Net amounts Balance
assetsliabihtics amounts presentted in Sheet
offset in the the
Consotidated  Consolidated :
Level 1Level Level Balance Balance Cash Net
1 P 3 Sheet (1) Shest . collatera] . Emount
Assets ’
Foreign exchange contracts  $ - $31756 % — 5 (25931 8 15,83 -S{ — § 1183
Commodity contracts 8 — : 9 - 89
§ & 33775 § 3 {25933} % 11912 § - § 11912
Luabtlities
Foreign exchange contracts $ - $33925 § $ (25931 % 7992 3 - 3 7992
$ - 333925 § -- % {25933) § 7992 § - 3 7992

(1) Amounts represent the impact of legally enforceable master netting agreements that allow the
Company to net settle positive and negative positions.

As of December 31, 2016 and December 30, 2017, there were no Level 3 derivative assets or liabilities
measured at fair value, For the year ending December 30, 2017, there was no activity recorded for
Level 3 derivative assets or liabilities. As of December 29, 2018, changes in Level 3 net derivative
assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs
were as follows:

Balance, December 30, 2017 $
Total realized‘unrealized gains (losses)}

included in net income (a) 3478
Purchases, sales and net settlements 3,971)
Balance, December 29, 2018 $ (493)

(2) Net Income effects are primarily included in cost of products sold.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property, plant and equipment, net consists of the following at December 29, 2018 and December 30,
2017

2018 2017
Land by 187901 % 183,671
Buildings and fixtures 1,924,895 1,890,960
Machinery and equipment 4675017 4,892,201
Construction in progress 673,979 689,885

7,461,792 7,656,717
Accumulated depreciation (4,174,149) {4,294,011)

$ 3,287,643 § 3362706
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GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The changes inthe carrying value of goodwill for the years ended December 29,2018 and December 30,
2017 were as follows:

2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year:
Gross carrying amount $ 5833678 § 5,185,789
Accumulated impairment losses (15,753) (15,753)

5817925 5,170,036
Goodwill acquired 6,546 97,466
Foreign exchange fluctuations (291,763) 550,423
Balance, end of year: $ 5532708 % 5817925

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization by major intangible asset class were as
follows:

2018 2017
Gross carrying ~ Accumulated  Grosscamrying  Accumulated
artount amortization amournt amortizatian
Finite-Jived:

Trademarks s 714,320 $ 259,557 $ 779,334 % 280,593
Customer relationships 2,706,913 2,589,550 2,872,235 2,522.918
Patents and technology 11,277 3,902 11,844 2,955
Other 69,623 69,503 43,386 40,956
Total $ 3502133 § 2922512 § 3706799 § 2,847,422

Amortization expense for each of the next five years is estimated to be $32 million, $32 million, $32
million, $31 million and £31 million.

Based on the Company’s annual impairment test of indefinite-lived trademarks, the Company
recognized an impairment loss of $8 milfion refated to a pet nutrition indefinite-lived trademark during
the year ended December 30, 2017.

RESTRUCTURING

From time to time, the Company approves and implements restructuring plans to better manage the
Company's cost structure and more effectively align certain operations with current business
conditions. The Company expects the majority of the restructuring plans 1o be completed within one
year, with plans in certain countries extending beyond one year as a result of compliance with focal
country laws.
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The changes in the accrued restructuring balances consisted of the following:

Other
Severance restructuring
. and benefits related costs Total

Balance, December 31, 2016 B 2677 % 6936 $ 29613

Expense 99,025 14,494 113,519

Payments Y (45,146) (16,292) {61.438)

Foreign exchange fluctuations . 2299 . 16 2315
Balance, December 30, 2017 % 78855 % 5154 § 84,009

Expensc 85275 13,709 98,984

Payments . (72,736) {9,591} (82,327

Foreign exchange fluctuations , (3,977) (338) {(4,315)
Balance, December 29, 2018 3 87,417 '§ 8934 § 96,351

Restructuring charges of $80 million and $19 million were recorded during 2018 in selling, general
and administrative expense and cost of products sold, respectively. Included in the 2018 restructuring
charges were $69 million of expenses incurred related to the combination of the Company's Mars
Chocolate snd Wrigley segments intoa new segment called Mars Wrigley Confectionery. The Company
expects to incur additional restructuring charges of about $36 million related to Mars Wrigley

Confectionery through 2020.

Restructuring charges of §96 million and $18 million were recorded during 2017 in selling, general
and administrative expense and cost of products sold, respectively. Included in the 2017 restructuring
charges were $79 million of expenses incurred related to the combination of the Company’s Mars
Chocolate and Wrigley segments into a new segment called Mars Wrigley Confectionery.

The restructuring liability is included in accounts payable and accrued liabitities, and other liabilities
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is party to various lawsuits and actions arising in the course of its business. The Company
accrues for litigation and claims when it is probable that a Lability has been incurred and the amount of
loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company has evaluated claims in accordance with the accounting
guidance for contingencies. In the opinion of the Company, based on a number of factors, including advice
of outside legal counsel in certain instances, the ultimate reselution of these matters will not have a
material adverse effect on the financial position or results of operations or cash flows of the Company.
However, it is reasonably possible that some matters could be decided unfavorably to the Company and
could require the Company to make payments tm amounts that could be material. In the opinion of
management, this potential exposure is not reasonably estimable.

The Company has committed to an investment in limited partnerships not to exceed $20 million, of which
£6 million remains committed and unfunded at Decernber 29, 201 8.

The Company has entered into agreements to lease certain office and warehouse facilities and equipment
under both capital and operating leases. Amortization of assets recorded under capital leases was included

in depreciation expense.
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Rental expense under operating leases was $89 million and $94 million for the year ended December 29,
2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively. The following is a summary of future minimum lease
payments for all capital leases and operating leases as of December 29, 2018:

Capital Operating
: leases leases Total
2019 s 7522 % 86323 8§ 93845
2020 7430 58,842 66,272
2021 7,404 39,692 47,096
2022 7,523 25,058 32,581
2023 7.650 21,304 29,454
Thereafter 88,737 56,825 145,562
Total minimum lease paymems 126266 % 283544 § 414310
[.ess Interest (58,482)
Present value of minimum lease payments 67,784
Current portion of obligations under capital leases (7,522)
Long-term portion of obligations under capital leases § 60,262

RELATED PARTIES

The Company enters into various transactions with its Parent in the normal course of business or in
cannection with integration activities between the two companies. Such transactions include the purchase
and sale of finished product, the sublicensing of Wrigley intellectual property rights. the purchase and
sale of property, plant and equipment, and the transfer and cross charging of associate and other charges.

Fot the years ending December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017 transactions with related parties were
as follows:

Location on the Financial

{n thousands Staternents 2018 2017
Sales Net Sales $ 1,534,625 § 1482524
Cast of products sold and
Purchases inventory S 1.998.134 § 1470244

Shared service costs,
management fees, technology  Selling, general, and

fees, and other charges administrative expenses  § 817278 § 382 681
Interest {income) expense Interest (income) expense
{from) with Mars, net {from) with Mars, net $ (98.601) % 112,618

As of December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, WIHC has a net receivable due from Mars of $8,743
million and $6,010 million, respectively, and is presented within current assets. These assets include the
net of accounts receivable, cash management, notes receivable, notes payable, and accounts payable
balances. Mars generally has the unilateral ability to modify its global intercompany capital structure,
and modify the payment terms for note agreements, accounts receivable and accounts payable.

During the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30, 2017, WIHC made non-cash dividends to
Mars of $10 million and $1,475 milkien, respectively. During the years ended December 29, 2018 and
December 30, 2017, Mars made non-cash investments in WIHC of $290 million and $3,594 million,
respectively. These non-cash dividends and affiliate investments are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Stockholders' [nvestment.

Cash payments for affiliate interest were $6 million and $56 million for the years ended December 29,
2018 and December 30, 2017, respectively.
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Credit facilities

On December 7, 2015, a Mars subsidiary in China (Mars Foods (China) Co., Ltd) entered into a revolving
credit facility to botrow up to ¥950 million from WIHC's Chinese subsidiary (Mars Wrigley Confectionery
{China) Ltd). The credit facility matures on December 7, 2020. As of December 29, 2018 and
December 30, 2017, the Mars subsidiary in China had borrowings of ¥735 million and ¥0 million,
respectively. The borrowings of ¥735 million as of December 29, 2018 bear an interest rate of 2% with
an auto-extending maturity date of no later than December 7, 2020.

On April 6, 2017, a Mars subsidiary in China (Mars Foods (China) Co., Ltd) entered into a revelving

credit facility to borrow up 1o ¥650 million from WIHC's Chinese Subsidiary (Mars Wrigley Confectionery

{China) Ltd). The credit facility matures on December 7, 2020. As of December 29, 2018 and

December 30, 2017, the Mars subsidiary in China had no borrowings outstanding under the agreement.
{14y  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, at December 29, 2018 and

December 30, 2017 were as follows:
Forcign Pension and
curTEnKCY Unrealized other
translation gain on postretirement
adjustments investments benefits Total
Balance, December 31, 2016 $ (4,165,888 § 91483 $ (2,703,111 § (6,781,516)
Other comprehensive income
before reclassification 1,412,082 T1.070 (383,406) 1,105,746
Reclassification from other
comprchensive income - (9,371) 216,715 207,344
Other comprehensive income, net 1,412,082 67,699 (166,691) 1,313,090

Balance, December 35, 2017 3 PITS-’ISOG! 3 159,182 § (2,869]802! H 15i463I426z

Other compeehensive income

before reclassification (1,052,153) (44,730) (4,888) (1,101,771)
Reclassification from other

comprehensive income — (12,383) 200,428 187,545
Othet comprehensive income, net (1,052,153) (57,613) 195,540 (914,226)

Belance, December 29, 2018 ] !3i809|959t ) 101,569 $ 12|674I262I $ 562%652!
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The components of comprehensive income for the year ended December 29, 2018 were as follows:

Total Noncontrolling
WIHC nterests Total
Net income $ L1,775550 § 3,770 % 1,779.320
Cumulative translation adjustments, net of tax
benefit of $4,741 (1.052.153) {111y (1,052,264}
Unrealized loss on available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized Josses arising during period,
net of tax benefit of $191 (44,730) - (44,730)
Less: reclassification of (gains) on investments
included in net income, net of tax
expense of $1 (12,883) - (12,883)
Net change in pension and other postretirement
expense, net of tax expense of $34,095 (a) 195,540 195,540
Comprechensive income $ 861324 8 3.659 § 864,983

{a) Refer to Note 5. Pension and other postretirement plans, for information refated to the prior service
costs arising during the period, the net loss arising during the period and amortization of prior service
costs included in net periodic pension cost.

The components of cemprehensive income for the year ended December 30, 2017 were as follows.
Total Noncontrolling

WIHC inferests Total
Net income $ 1313418 % 202 $1.314220
Cumulative translation adjustments, net of tax
benefit of $18,776 1.412.082 1.412,082
Unreatized gain on available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized gains arising during period.
net of tax benefit of $846 77.070 77,070
Less: reciassification of (gains) on investments
included in net income, net of tax
expense of 350 (8.371) —_ (9.371)
Net change in pension and other postretirement
expense, net of tax benefit of $54,799 (a) (166,691} {166,691)
$ 2,626,508 % 802 $2,627310

Comprehensive income
{a) Refer to Note S, Pension and other postretirement plans, for information related to the prior service

costs arising during the period, the net loss arising during the period and amontization of prior service
costs included in net periodic pension cost.
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(Gains)'Losses reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive loss and recognized in the
Consolidated Statements of Income were included in the following financial statement line items during
the years ended December 29, 2018 and December 30. 2017:

Description of Accumulated Other Location of (Gain) Loss Amounits Reclassified from
Comprehensive Loss Recognized in the Accumulated Other
Components Statements of Income Comprehensive Loss
LInrealized Gain on Investments 2018 2017
Realized gain on sale of
investments Investment income S (12,884) % (9,421)
Tax expense {1) (50)
Net of tax 5 {(12883) 8 (9,371)
Pension end Other Postretirement
Benefits
Net loss (b) $ 270856 § 291,586
Net prior service cost (b) 2,654 1,341
Net transition asset (b} - -
Total before tax 273,510 292927
Tax benefut 73,082 76212

Net of tax 3§ 200428 % 216715

(b) Accumulated other comprehensive loss components are included in the computation of net periodic
pension cost. Sec Note 5, Pension and other postretirement plans, for additional detail,

(15)  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company evaluated subsequent events through August 23, 2019, the date the Consolidated Financial

Statements were available to be issued, for conditions both existing and not existing as of December 29,
20i 8 and concluded there were no subsequent events to recognize and no subsequent events to disclose.
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